Directory of Federal Anti-Drug Grants



ice of National Drug Control Policy Paper

91

Directory of Federal Anti-Drug Grants

140794

.

U.S. Department of Justice National Institute of Justice

This document has been reproduced exactly as received from the person or organization originating it. Points of view or opinions stated in this document are those of the authors and do not necessarily represent the official position or policies of the National Institute of Justice.

Permission to reproduce this copyrighted material has been granted by

Office of National Drug Control

Policy

to the National Criminal Justice Reference Service (NCJRS).

Further reproduction outside of the NCJRS system requires permission of the copyright owner.

An Office of National Drug Control Policy White Paper

April 1991

Contents

Introduction1
National Drug Control Programs
DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION5
Office of Elementary and Secondary Education
Federal Activities Grants Program School Personnel Training Program Counselor Training Grant Program Regional Centers for Drug-Free Schools and Communities
Office of Postsecondary Education
Office of Special Education and Rehabilitative Services
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES13
Alcohol, Drug Abuse, and Mental Health Administration

National Institute on Drug Abuse Neuroscience Research on Drug Abuse	14	
Research on Pain and Analgesia		
Vulnerability to Drug Abuse		
AIDS and the Prevention of Intravenous Drug Abuse		
Treatment of IV Drug Abusers to Reduce the Spread of AIDS		
Drug Abuse Treatment Research Grants		
Patterns and Consequences of Drug Use Maternal and Paternal Drug Abuse and Its Effect on Offspring		
Development of Medications—Medicinal Chemistry Considerations		
Psychotherapy and Counseling in Drug Abuse Treatment		
Research on Behavior Change and Prevention Strategies		
to Reduce Transmission of Human Immunodeficiency		
Virus		
Office for Substance Abuse Prevention	17	
Community Partnership Demonstration Grants Program		
Community Youth Program		
Demonstration Grants Targeting Youth At High Risk		
Model Projects for Pregnant and Postpartum Women		
and their Infants		
Office for Treatment Improvement	19	
Treatment Grants to Crisis Areas/Target Cities		
Treatment Improvement in Critical Populations		
Treatment Improvement in Criminal Justice		
Treatment Campus		
The Waiting Period Reduction Grant Program		
Office of Human Development Services	21	
Abandoned Infants Assistance Program		
Drug Abuse Prevention Program for Runaway and		
Homeless Youth		
Youth Gang Drug Prevention Program		
DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT	23	
Office of Public and Indian Housing	23	
Public Housing Drug Elimination Grants Program		
DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE	25	
Office of Justice Programs, Bureau of Justice Assistance	25	
Edward Byrne Memorial State and Local Law Enforcement		
Assistance Program		
Office of Juvenile Justice Delinquency Programs	31	

I	DEPARTMENT OF LABOR	33
	Employment and Training Administration	33
F	ACTION	37
	Drug Alliance Grants Foster Grandparents Program Retired Senior Volunteer Program Senior Companion Program Volunteers in Service to America	
Ad	ditional Grant Programs	
Ι	DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES	41
	Office for Substance Abuse Prevention Communications Cooperative Agreement Programs Conference Support Grants National Training System	41
	Technical Assistance Workshops	
	Office of Human Development Services Head Start Family Service Center Demonstration Projects	42
Ι	DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT	43
	Technical Assistance Program	
A	ACTION	45
	Student Community Service Program	
Ap	pendices	
A. B.	Formula Drug Grants to States	
C.	Communities Grant Program Alcohol/Drug Abuse State/Territory Contacts for ADMS	
D.	Block Grant Program State/Territory Contacts for Drug Control and System	67
E.	Improvement Formula Grant ProgramGovernor/State Liaisons for the Job Training	
F.	Partnership Act	85 95

Introduction

The Federal budget for programs devoted to the Nation's fight against illegal drugs has seen unprecedented growth — both proportionally and in real dollar terms — since the Administration took office in January 1989. President Bush inherited a Fiscal Year 1989 drug budget that totalled \$6.4 billion. His current proposal for Fiscal Year 1992 drug programs totals \$11.7 billion, a \$5.3 billion or 82 percent increase.

Because Federal partnership with State and local anti-drug efforts is a central goal of the President's National Drug Control Strategy — and because State and local effort is ultimately the linchpin of national success — the Administration has proposed comparably large increases specifically for programs that provide direct assistance to non-Federal initiatives. The Federal budget for drug-related grants to State, local, and private agencies has now grown from \$1.3 billion in Fiscal Year 1989 to a Presidentially-proposed \$2.7 billion in Fiscal Year 1992, a \$1.4 billion or 108 percent increase. New grant programs have been created; a large number of others have been sizably expanded.

State, local, and private agencies face an array of possible sources for Federal drug-related grant assistance. More than once in the past two years, this Office has been contacted by potential grantees who are confused about what Federal drug assistance their jurisdictions and communities are *already* receiving, and what Federal programs remain available but yet untapped. This document catalogs Federal programs that make drug-related grants to States, localities, and private agencies.

Its first section describes and provides budget and application information for 51 programs in five Cabinet Departments and ACTION. Funding of these principal programs is counted as specifically drug-related in the Federal budget. Seven other programs that may be of related interest to State, local, and private agencies concerned with drugs and drug use are similarly enumerated in the second section of this white paper. A number of appendices list consolidated budget information and the names, addresses, and telephone numbers of regional and State officials through whose offices most listed programs and funds are directed.

Diectory of Federal Anti-Drug Grantss

This document will be updated and published annually, and it is my hope and intention that its wide and targeted distribution will help ensure that all available Federal drug-related assistance is fully and effectively used.

Bob Martinez
Director, Office of National
Drug Control Policy

National Drug Control Programs

Department of Education

Office of Elementary and Secondary Education

Drug-Free Schools State and Local Grants Program. This is a formula grant program that allocates funds to States based on schoolage population. Each State's allocation is divided between the State educational agency (SEA) and the Office of the Governor. The SEA must allot at least 90 percent of the funds it receives to local education agencies (LEAs) to improve anti-drug abuse education, prevention, early intervention, and rehabilitation referral programs. The Governor provides financial support for anti-drug abuse efforts to community-based organizations. At least 42.5 percent of the Governor's funds must be used for programs for high-risk youth. Approximately \$497.7 million is available in FY 1991 to support this program. For FY 1992, \$497.7 million is requested. A table showing State allocations for FY 1990 through 1992 is included in Appendix A. A list of contacts in each State and Territory for the programs funded through the Governor's office and programs funded through the SEA is included in Appendix B.

Demonstration Grants Program. The purpose of this program is to award grants to institutions of higher education (IHEs) and consortia of IHEs for model demonstration programs coordinated with local elementary and secondary schools for the development and implementation of quality drug and alcohol abuse education and prevention programs. For FY 1991, approximately \$5 million was appropriated, of which approximately \$3.2 million is available for new grant awards. Grants will range from \$100,000 to \$500,000, with the average size of awards around \$320,000. An estimated ten awards will be made. Application materials were available on February 4, 1991. Applications were due by March 15, 1991. For FY 1992, \$5.1 million is requested.

Emergency Grants Program. This program provides assistance to LEAs that demonstrate a significant need for additional assistance in combating drug and alcohol use. Districts compete for funding to support a comprehensive range of services, including educational programs, counseling programs, enhancement of school security, afterschool programs, programs for parents and other community outreach efforts, and alternative programs for students with a history of drug abuse or others who are difficult to reach in the regular school setting. Approximately \$24.3 million is available under this program in FY 1991. Grants will range from \$100,000 to \$1 million, with the average size of awards around \$500,000. An estimated 50 awards will be made. Application materials were available on February 22, 1991. Applications were due by April 5, 1991. For FY 1992, \$49.5 million is requested.

Federal Activities Grants Program. This program supports the development, implementation, dissemination, and evaluation of educational strategies and programs that are designed to prevent substance abuse. State educational agencies, LEAs, IHEs, and other nonprofit agencies, organizations, and institutions are eligible for award. Approximately \$5 million is available under this program for grants in FY 1991. Grants will range from \$100,000 to \$400,000, with the average size of awards around \$250,000. An estimated 20 awards will be made. Application materials were available on February 4, 1991. Applications were due by March 15, 1991. For FY 1992, \$5 million is requested.

School Personnel Training Program. This program provides financial assistance to SEAs, LEAs, and IHEs to establish, expand, or enhance programs and activities for the training of elementary and secondary school teachers and administrators, and other elementary and secondary school personnel concerning drug and alcohol abuse education and prevention. Approximately \$20 million is available for awards under this program in FY 1991. Grants will range from \$100,000 to \$300,000, with an average award of \$136,000. Applications for school personnel training grants for FY 1991 were due by February 22, 1991. An estimated 147 awards will be made. The Department has requested \$20 million for this program in FY 1992.

Counselor Training Grant Program. This new program, authorized by the Crime Control Act of 1990, will provide \$3.4 million in FY 1991 for the training of counselors, social workers, psychologists, or nurses who are providing or will provide drug abuse prevention, counseling, or referral services in elementary and secondary schools. State educational agencies, LEAs, IHEs, and private nonprofit agencies are eligible to apply. Deadline for applications is tentatively scheduled for July 1, 1991. Grants will range from \$50,000 to \$100,000 with the average size being around \$75,000. An estimated 45 awards will be made. For FY 1992, \$3.4 million is requested for this program.

Information. For further information on any of the programs listed above or to request application materials, please call the Drug-Free Schools and Communities Division at (202) 401-1599, or write:

Drug-Free Schools and Communities Division Office of Elementary and Secondary Education Department of Education 400 Maryland Avenue, SW, Room 2135 Washington, D.C. 20202

Regional Centers for Drug-Free Schools and Communities. The Department awarded five cooperative agreements for regional centers to: (1) train school teams to assess and combat drug and alcohol abuse

problems; (2) assist SEAs in coordinating and strengthening alcohol and drug abuse education and prevention programs; (3) assist LEAs and IHEs in developing training programs for educational personnel; and (4) evaluate and disseminate information on effective substance abuse education and prevention programs and strategies. The Centers are as follows:

For Indiana, Illinois, Iowa, Michigan, Minnesota, Missouri, Nebraska, North Dakota, South Dakota, and Wisconsin:

Midwest Regional Center
North Central Regional Educational Laboratory
Elmhurst, Illinois
Contact: Judson Hixson
(708) 571-4700

For Alabama, the District of Columbia, Florida, Georgia, Kentucky, North Carolina, Puerto Rico, South Carolina, Tennessee, Virginia, Virgin Islands, and West Virginia:

Southeast Regional Center University of Louisville Louisville, Kentucky Contact: Nancy J. Cunningham (502) 588-6852

For Connecticut, Delaware, Maine, Maryland, Massachusetts, New Hampshire, New Jersey, New York, Ohio, Pennsylvania, Rhode Island, and Vermont:

Northeast Regional Center Super Teams, Ltd. Sayville, New York Contact: Gerald Edwards (516) 589-7022

For Arizona, Arkansas, Colorado, Kansas, Louisiana, Mississippi, New Mexico, Oklahoma, Texas, and Utah:

Southwest Regional Center University of Oklahoma Norman, Oklahoma Contact: John Steffens (405) 325-1454 For Alaska, American Samoa, California, Guam, Hawaii, Idaho, Montana, Nevada, Northern Mariana Islands. Oregon, Trust Territory of the Pacific Islands, Washington, and Wyoming.

Western Regional Center Northwest Regional Educational Laboratory Portland, Oregon Contact: Robert Rath (503) 275-9476

A portion of the funds under the Regional Centers Program has been set aside for a project to provide support to the five regional centers. Their responsibilities include collecting and disseminating information on regional center activities, collecting and disseminating information on model alcohol and drug education and prevention activities, providing technical assistance to the centers in carrying out their responsibilities, and coordinating and supporting national workshops and conferences.

Office of Postsecondary Education

The grant competitions that follow are funded from the Institutions of Higher Education Student Programs. Funding for these competitions totals \$14.1 million in FY 1991, distributed as indicated in the competition descriptions. For FY 1992, \$14.4 million is requested, although the distribution of the requested funds among the competitions has not yet been established.

Approaches to Accountability in Prevention Programs. This program supports the formulation of promising new approaches to individual and institutional leadership and responsibility as they relate to drug abuse education and prevention for students in IHEs. Institutions of higher education and consortia of IHEs are eligible to apply. Approximately \$80,000 is available in FY 1991. Grants are for nine months beginning February 15, 1991, and ending November 30, 1991. The maximum amount of a grant under this competition was \$15,000. Applications were due by October 25, 1990.

Institution-Wide Program. Grants to IHEs and consortia of IHEs under the program support comprehensive, institution-wide programs designed to prevent or eliminate students' use of illegal drugs and abuse of other drugs and alcohol, including activities whose direct or indirect purpose is to train students, faculty, and staff in drug abuse education and prevention. Approximately \$11.951 million is available under this program in FY 1991. The estimated range of awards is \$10,000 to \$250,000, with the average size of awards around \$100,000. An esti-

mated 100 awards will be made. Application materials were available on October 19, 1990. Applications were due by January 22, 1991.

National College Student Organizational Network Program. This competition focuses on assisting national college student organizations, either singly or in consortia, that wish to work on drug and alcohol prevention, through their national network of chapters, in institutions of higher education across the Nation. In order to be eligible, a national college student network must work through an IHE which will submit the application, be the fiscal agent, and provide guidance and support. Approximately \$230,000 is available under this program in FY 1991. The estimated range of awards is \$10,000 to \$250,000, with the average size of awards around \$100,000. An estimated 100 awards will be made. Application materials were available on October 26, 1990. Applications were due by February 27, 1991.

Specific Approaches to Prevention Projects. Applicants are invited to propose consortia arrangements to assist local and nearby prevention professionals representing IHEs to meet on a monthly basis to discuss, investigate, and act on efforts to develop and improve their own comprehensive, institution-wide programs of drug education and prevention. Approximately \$910,000 is available under this program in FY 1991. The estimated range of awards is \$5,000 to \$40,000, with the average size of awards around \$34,000. An estimated 40 awards will be made. Application materials were available on November 20, 1990. Applications were due by February 21, 1991.

Dissemination of Successful Institution-Wide Projects. This program supports the dissemination of successful project designs, policies, and results of projects supported under Institution-Wide Program competitions and Special Focus Program Competitions. This competition is limited to current or former recipients of an award under the Institution-Wide Program and the Special Focus Program. Applicants who are proposing to disseminate their own successful projects that were funded in FY 1988 and for which Departmental assistance has ended are eligible. Approximately \$680,000 is available under this program in FY 1991. The estimated range of awards is \$35,000 to \$150,000. An estimated eight awards will be made. Application materials were available on November 1, 1990. Applications were due by January 14, 1991.

Analysis of Institution-Wide Projects. This program supports the analysis of successful project designs, policies, and results of projects supported under Institution-Wide Program competitions and Special Focus Program Competitions. This competition is limited to current or former recipients of an award under the Institution-Wide Program and the Special Focus Program. Applicants who are proposing to analyze the direct and indirect impacts of their projects that were funded in FY 1988 and for which departmental assistance has ended are eligible. Approxi-

mately \$300,000 is available under this program in FY 1991. The estimated range of awards is up to \$150,000. An estimated five to ten awards will be made. Application materials were available on November 1, 1990. Applications were due by January 14, 1991.

For additional information on the six programs listed above, please contact the Fund for the Improvement of Postsecondary Education (FIPSE) at (202) 708-5750.

Office of Special Education and Rehabilitative Services

Vocational Rehabilitation State Grant Program. The Vocational Rehabilitation (VR) State Grant Program provides funding for activities to rehabilitate disabled individuals. Funds are allocated to States and Territories on the basis of their population and per capita income. Persons who are considered drug dependent can qualify for VR services if their disability constitutes a substantial handicap to employment. It is estimated that approximately \$55.5 million of the FY 1991 appropriation and \$60.7 million of the FY 1992 budget request will be used to benefit the drug dependent. This program is administered by the Rehabilitation Services Administration (RSA) in the Office of Special Education and Rehabilitative Services (OSERS). For further information, please contact RSA at (202) 732-1282.

Grants for Infants and Families. This program, authorized by Part H of the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act, provides Federal support to help States develop and implement statewide systems of early intervention services for children, aged birth through two years, who are developmentally delayed or who have a diagnosed physical or mental condition that has a high probability of resulting in developmental delay. At their discretion, States may also aid children who are at risk of substantial development delay if early intervention services are not provided. Since many drug-exposed children are likely to be eligible for services under this program, the Department considers the program to be a significant component of the Federal effort to address the needs of these children. ED expects that 10 percent of the children served under the program will be children who were prenatally exposed to drugs. It is estimated that \$11.7 million of the FY 91 Part H appropriation and \$12.8 million of the FY 92 Part H budget request will be used to benefit prenatally exposed children. For further information, please contact OSERS at (202) 732-1265.

Early Childhood Education. This program supports research, demonstrations, and other activities to improve special education and early intervention services for infants, toddlers, and young children with disabilities. Included in this group are infants and toddlers aided under

the Grants to Infants and Families program, and children ages 3 through 8 who require special education as a result of a disability. An increasing number of infants, toddlers, and children who have been exposed to drugs are falling into these categories. In 1991, the program will award about \$750,000 for support of an early childhood research institute on drug abuse. The program has also included invitational priorities for applications that address the needs of young children born with drug addiction in competitions for model demonstration projects and outreach projects. A total of \$3.4 million is available in 1991 for the model demonstration and outreach competitions that include these invitational priorities. The application deadline for model demonstration projects was April 1, 1991, and the deadline for outreach projects was March 11, 1991. Similar competitions and funding levels are expected for 1992.

Information. For further information on any of the activities of the Department of Education summarized above, please call (202) 401-3030 or write:

Drug Planning and Outreach Staff U.S. Department of Education 400 Maryland Avenue, SW, Room 4145 Washington, D.C. 20202

Department of Health and Human Services

Alcohol, Drug Abuse, and Mental Health Administration

The Alcohol, Drug Abuse, and Mental Health Administration (ADAMHA) includes the National Institute of Mental Health (NIMH), the National Institute on Drug Abuse (NIDA), the National Institute on Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism (NIAAA), the Office for Substance Abuse Prevention (OSAP), and the Office for Treatment Improvement (OTI). Information on anti-drug abuse grants for NIDA, OSAP, and OTI is provided below.

Alcohol, Drug Abuse, and Mental Health Services Block Grant Program. The purpose of the Alcohol, Drug Abuse, and Mental Health Services (ADMS) Block Grant is to provide financial assistance to States and territories for the development of effective prevention, treatment, and rehabilitation programs and activities to deal with alcohol and drug abuse; to prevent the transmission of the etiologic agent for acquired immune deficiency syndrome (AIDS) by enhancing the capacity to treat intravenous drug abusers; to support community mental health centers for the provision of services to the mentally ill; to provide specialized services for seriously emotionally disturbed children and adolescents; to provide services designed for women (especially pregnant women and women with dependent children); and to conduct data collection and health services research on alcohol, drug abuse, and mental health disorders to enhance knowledge and improve effectiveness of services. For FY 1991, Congress appropriated \$1,268.7 million for the ADMS Block Grant. Of this amount, \$512.3 million is for the drug portion of the block grant. A table showing State allocations for FY 1990 through 1992 is included in Appendix A. For FY 1992, \$512.3 million is again requested for the drug portion of the block grant.

For information on the availability of the alcohol and drug abuse portion of the Block Grant monies, please contact the single State authority for alcohol and drug abuse in your State. A list of these contacts is included in Appendix C.

Information. For information on any ADAMHA program, please call (301) 443-3783 or write:

Alcohol, Drug Abuse, and Mental Health Administration 5600 Fishers Lane Rockville, Maryland 20857

National Institute on Drug Abuse (ADAMHA)

The National Institute on Drug Abuse (NIDA) supports research on the nature and extent, causes and consequences, prevention and treatment of drug abuse. NIDA also supports research demonstration programs which generate information on promising new prevention, treatment, and AIDS outreach approaches. Applications are being accepted for drug abuse research in the following areas: (1) basic biomedical and neuroscientific research at the genetic, molecular, organ, and system level; (2) biochemistry, pharmaceutical/medicinal development and chemistry, and metabolic and pharmacokinetic studies; (3) epidemiology and natural history/etiology studies; (4) treatment research; (5) prevention research; (6) behavioral and clinical pharmacology research; (7) research on AIDS/HIV infection in relation to drug abuse; (8) workplace issues in drug abuse; (9) community-based initiatives to reduce drug-taking behaviors; and (10) studies of treatment systems and the cost/economic impact of drug abuse and treatment.

NIDA provides support through the following mechanisms: (1) research projects; (2) small grants; (3) conference grants; (4) first independent research support and transition awards; (5) small business innovation research grants; (6) research demonstration and dissemination projects; (7) program project grants; (8) research centers; and (9) contracts and cooperative agreements. NIDA also supports a number of different training support programs, including individual and institutional training grants, training contracts focused on specific populations, the Minority Access to Research training program, and research scientist development awards.

In 1991, \$416 million was appropriated for NIDA research activities. The President's Budget request for these activities in 1992 is \$446.2 million. Specific NIDA grant programs related to drug control activities are summarized below. Applications may be submitted by any public or private, nonprofit or for-profit organizations such as universities, colleges, hospitals, laboratories, units of State and local governments, and eligible agencies of the Federal government. Applications for the next grant cycles are due June 1 and October 1, 1991.

Information. Applications for NIDA programs are available from business or research offices at most universities, colleges, medical schools, and other research facilities or directly from NIDA by calling (301) 443-6710 or by writing:

Grants Management Branch National Institute on Drug Abuse 5600 Fishers Lane, Room 8A-54 Rockville, Maryland 20857

Neuroscience Research on Drug Abuse. NIDA awards grants for the study of the neural bases of drug abuse and the areas of neuroscience relevant to drug abuse, especially with respect to interfacing brain and behavior mechanisms. The purpose of these grants is to develop an increased understanding of the relationship between brain anatomy, physiology, pharmacology, and drug abuse behaviors. Areas of interest include the study of brain/reward mechanisms, neuropsychopharmacology, special study of drug-induced neurotoxicity, factors influencing vulnerability to drug abuse, developmental neurobiology, drug effects on cognitive processes and sensory processes, blood-brain barrier studies, and clinical neuroscience.

Research on Pain and Analgesia. NIDA has an ongoing program to solicit grant applications to study chronic pain and its treatment. Of special interest to NIDA are studies of pain that responds poorly to opiates and the basic mechanism of action of non-opiate analgesics; behavioral approaches to particular pain problems; analgesic levels attained by different routes of administration of opiates, techniques for the measurement of pain and its relief in clinical settings; understanding of the treatment of pain in children; and development of more effective, less addictive analgesics.

Vulnerability to Drug Abuse. NIDA solicits grants which investigate vulnerability to drug abuse, including study of the genetic and environmental factors that are involved in the etiology of the disorder; identify groups that are at high risk for the development of the disorder; facilitate the development of programs that are effective in preventing the disorder in high-risk groups; and improve effects of treating the disorder by addressing the etiological factors during treatment.

AIDS and the Prevention of Intravenous Drug Abuse. NIDA sponsors research that seeks to improve our understanding of the factors that contribute to the etiology of intravenous drug abuse; develop strategies that are effective in preventing intravenous drug abuse; improve our understanding of factors that contribute to needle sharing behavior among intravenous drug abusers; and develop strategies that are effective in preventing AIDS high-risk behaviors.

Treatment of IV Drug Abusers to Reduce the Spread of AIDS. NIDA wishes to stimulate research in the treatment of intravenous drug abuse in order to ultimately reduce the spread of AIDS. Research applications are solicited for efforts to improve the effectiveness of existing treatment strategies and develop new strategies; develop methodology to attract more intravenous drug abusers into treatment; and prevent relapse following treatment. Both pharmacological and behav-

iorally-based interventions are encouraged.

Drug Abuse Treatment Research Grants. NIDA supports research on controlled clinical trials and scientifically based outcome evaluation research directed at the treatment of drug abuse and/or drug abuse treatment service systems. These include screening procedures to identify candidates for treatment or strategies to enhance entrance into treatment; diagnosis to provide individualized profiles of severity of substance abuse and matching treatment; utilization of diagnostic profiles to determine specific therapeutic interventions to optimize treatment efficacy; treatment delivery, monitoring, and outcome evaluation; aftercare service and post-treatment follow-up or prolonged treatment to reduce relapse or recurrence of drug use.

Patterns and Consequences of Drug Use. The purpose of these grants is to carry out epidemiologic research regarding the patterns of acute and chronic drug use and their differential effects. Research is encouraged to identify and describe important patterns of drug use which are differentiated by such factors as their predictors, the population groups at risk, and/or their distinct effects; refine and evaluate various methodologies for assessing and validating drug use patterns and consequences; and identify adverse consequences of drug use and estimate their probability of occurrence for specific groups.

Maternal and Paternal Drug Abuse and Its Effect on Offspring. This program focuses on the use of drugs during pregnancy. Research proposals are solicited to study the effects of abused drugs on reproductive and developmental processes, to identify the prevalence of maternal and paternal drug abuse and the consequences for the newborn; identify the mechanism underlying the organic and behavioral effects resulting from exposure in utero and/or during lactation; develop strategies and procedures to prevent, ameliorate, and/or reverse these toxic effects and their developmental consequences; and to identify multigenerational consequences of parental drug abuse on the offspring.

Development of Medications—Medicinal Chemistry Considerations. This program will support studies which involve rational design of new pharmacological agents by application structure-activity relationship studies, synthesis of analogs, screening for bioactivity, and preliminary studies to determine metabolism and bioavailability. Also of interest is dosage form development.

Psychotherapy and Counseling in Drug Abuse Treatment. Grant proposals are solicited to study psychotherapy, behavior therapy, drug abuse counseling, and other non-pharmacological intervention in the treatment of drug abuse. Studies involve the use of controlled clinical trials or other scientifically established research methods. A secondary aim is to encourage the development of instruments to measure process and outcome in nonpharmacological treatment.

Research on Behavior Change and Prevention Strategies to Reduce Transmission of Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV). Together with the National Institute on Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism and the National Institute of Mental Health, NIDA solicits theoretically grounded research grants which develop methods and techniques to understand, prevent, and/or change high-risk sexual and drug-abusing behaviors and to sustain the changed behavior over time. Research is also encouraged to identify psychological, social, and cultural barriers and enhancers to these behavior changes. The behaviors under study include sharing of injection equipment, sexual relations without knowledge of partner's involvement with high-risk behaviors, sexual relations with someone at high risk without using proper protection, and not taking precautions to guard against transmitting HIV if known to be infected.

Office for Substance Abuse Prevention (ADAMHA)

The Office for Substance Abuse Prevention (OSAP) supports prevention and early intervention projects which serve as models in preventing abuse of alcohol and other drugs. Emphasis is placed on youth and families living in high-risk environments. OSAP programs which are included as part of the National Drug Control Strategy are summarized below. Additional OSAP grants related to drug control activities are summarized on page 41.

Community Partnership Demonstration Grants Program. The Community Partnership Demonstration Grants Program fights alcohol and other drug problems through community-based coalitions of public agencies and private organizations. The aim is to develop comprehensive, self-sustaining and replicable systems within a community, involving several organizations or agencies including health, education, law enforcement, social services, grassroots community, and religious organizations in the prevention and intervention of alcohol and other drug abuse. Grantees must also demonstrate effective training, evaluation, and capacity building strategies. Approximately \$99.1 million is available in FY 1991 for both grants and contracts that support the grant programs. Approximately \$92.4 million is available in FY 1991 for grant

awards only. In the second cycle of grant awards in FY 1991, approximately \$22 million is available for 75 community partnership grants. Awards range from \$50,000 to \$3 million, with the average size of awards around \$300,000. Applications must be submitted by April 24, 1991. For FY 1992, \$110.9 million is requested for both grants and contracts that support the grant programs. Of that amount, \$106.9 million is for grant awards only. For further information, please contact the Division of Community Prevention and Training at (301) 443-0369.

Community Youth Program. This program has three components: (1) a block grant program for States and territories; (2) a State demonstration grant program limited to the 50 states, the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico, and the territories; and (3) contract authority for Projects of National Significance. For FY 1991, approximately \$20.2 million is appropriated for the Community Youth Activity Program. About \$1.1 million is available to support Projects of National Significance, \$4.9 million for the block grant program, and \$14.2 million for the competitive State Demonstration Grant Program.

The Department is recommending that the Community Youth Program not be continued in FY 1992, rather the money be used for the High Risk Youth and Pregnant Women and Their Infants Programs, as discussed below. For further information on the Community Youth Activity Program, please contact the Division of Community Prevention and Training at (301) 443-0369.

Demonstration Grants Targeting Youth at High Risk. The purpose of this program is to support client-oriented programs that develop and evaluate strategies to decrease the incidence and prevalence of alcohol and other drug use among high-risk youth and to enhance resiliency factors that protect high-risk youth against using alcohol and other drugs. Approximately \$50.7 million is available in FY 1991 for both grants and contracts that support the grant programs. Applications for the new grant cycle are due by May 20, 1991. For FY 1992, \$54.8 million is requested for both grants and contracts that support grant programs. For further information, please contact the Division of Demonstrations and Evaluation at (301) 443-0353.

Model Projects for Pregnant and Postpartum Women and Their Infants. This program supports the development of model projects for pregnant and postpartum women and their infants that focus on prevention, early intervention, treatment, and aftercare. Successful projects include promising models or innovative approaches to prevent or minimize fetal exposure to alcohol and other drugs, as well as projects that coordinate existing community services with new or expanded services. Many of the funded programs offer a continuum of therapeutic programs, integrating comprehensive supportive services involving health, education, voluntary and other relevant community-based organizations

and service systems. Approximately \$45.7 million is available in FY 1991 for both grants and contracts that support the grant program. Approximately \$43.1 million is available for grant awards only. Applications for the new grant cycle are due by May 20, 1991. For FY 1992, \$52.4 million is requested for both grants and contracts that support grant programs. Of that amount, \$49.7 million is requested for grant awards only. For further information, please contact the Division of Demonstrations and Evaluation at (301) 443-4564.

Information. For further information about the OSAP programs summarized above or to obtain application materials, please contact the National Clearinghouse for Alcohol and Drug Information at (301) 468-2600 or 1-800-729-6686 or write:

National Clearinghouse for Alcohol and Drug Information Post Office Box 2345 Rockville, Maryland 20852

Office for Treatment Improvement (ADAMHA)

The Office for Treatment Improvement (OTI) supports treatment projects to expand capacity and improve the quality of services.

Treatment Grants to Crisis Areas/Target Cities. The primary goal of this program is to implement overall systemic improvements in metropolitan settings. In 1990, OTI awarded eight three-year treatment improvement demonstration grants in urban jurisdictions at \$29.7 million. Receiving awards were Los Angeles, California; Atlanta, Georgia; Baltimore, Maryland; Boston, Massachusetts; Albuquerque, New Mexico; San Juan, Puerto Rico; and Milwaukee, Wisconsin. This is a competitive grant program, however; eligibility is restricted to the 50 largest cities in the United States. Under the auspices of this program, States can apply for funding for one, and only one, metropolitan center that fits the population eligibility criteria. Also, the State must prove that there is a high incidence of drug abuse and a chronic need for treatment improvement in the jurisdiction. States must also provide assurance of support during and after the period of Federal funding for this program. For FY 1991, \$31.3 million was appropriated for continuation funding of this program. For FY 1992, \$32.5 million is requested for continuation funding.

Treatment Improvement in Critical Populations. The goal of this grant program is to fund three-year demonstration projects to become national prototypes for providing a continuum of comprehensive therapeutic services coupled with aftercare to improve treatment outcome for

critical populations. Under this program, OTI awards three-year demonstration grants for treatment program/treatment system enhancements that are geared toward critical populations, such as adolescents, racial and ethnic minorities, and residents of public housing. For FY 1991, \$38.1 million was appropriated for this program. A grant announcement will be published in the *Federál Register* in early summer 1991. For FY 1992, \$39.6 million is requested for continuation funding.

Treatment Improvement in Criminal Justice. This grant program is in response to studies showing that a high percentage of criminal offenders are addicted to drugs. The ultimate goal of the OTI grants is to improve treatment outcomes for these prisoners. Funded programs must have the goal of reducing drug use, and thereby drug-related criminal recidivism. Under this program, OTI awards three-year demonstration grants for treatment programs that are geared toward substance abusers in the criminal justice system. For FY 1991, \$15.9 million was appropriated for this program. A grant announcement will be published in the Federal Register in early summer 1991. For FY 1992, \$16.6 million is requested.

Treatment Campus. The goal of this program is to enhance treatment capacity; to improve the quality of treatment, especially through provision of primary medical care and HIV/AIDS testing, counseling, and prevention; and to create a controlled environment for assessment and evaluation of the efficacy of differing approaches to treatment service provision. Under this program, cooperative agreements are established between States and OTI for the establishment of treatment "campuses." Each campus consists of five to eight distinct service providers that occupy a common program facility. Central intake, patient assessment, referral, and program evaluation are onsite. The total patient population on any given campus will be at or near 500. For FY 1991, \$18 million was appropriated for this program. Applications are due in December 1991. For FY 1992, \$18.7 million is requested.

The Waiting Period Reduction Grant Frogram. Under this program, states may apply for grant funds on behalf of treatment programs within their jurisdictions that have verifiable "waiting lists." This program was designed solely to expand treatment capacity in areas where patient demand clearly exceeds availability of service. For FY 1991, \$38.5 million was obligated from funds appropriated in FY 1990.

Information. For further information on the OTI programs summarized above, please call (301) 443-2467 or write:

Office for Treatment Improvement Rockwall II Building 5600 Fishers Lane, Tenth Floor Rockville, Maryland 20857

Office of Human Development Services

The Administration for Children, Youth and Families, part of the Office of Human Development Services (HDS), administers five programs which are included as part of the National Drug Control Strategy. These grant programs are summarized below. An additional HDS grant related to drug control activities is summarized on page 42.

Abandoned Infants Assistance Program. The Office of Human Development Services awards grants for demonstration projects to prevent the abandonment in hospitals of infants and young children, specifically drug-exposed children and those with acquired immune deficiency syndrome (AIDS); and to develop, implement, and operate a comprehensive services program to address the needs of these children and their families. Comprehensive services may include foster family care services, case management services, family support services, respite and crisis intervention services, counseling services and group residential home services. As part of the development of comprehensive services, the demonstration program may include recruiting and training health and social services personnel, foster care families, and residential care providers in an effort to meet the needs of abandoned children. Approximately \$9.9 million was available in FY 1990. Twenty four projects were awarded two-year grants. In FY 1991, approximately \$12.6 million was appropriated for continuation funding. For FY 1992, \$12.6 million is requested. For additional information, please contact the Children's Bureau at (202) 245-0618.

Program for Runaway and Homeless. **Youth.** Grants are awarded to public and private nonprofit agencies, organizations, and institutions to carry out research, demonstration, counseling, and services to runaway youth and their families and to homeless youth to prevent or reduce the illicit use of drugs by such youth; to support peer counseling, community education, outreach, training, research and services coordination related to illicit drug use by runaway and homeless youth; and to provide runaway and homeless youth in rural areas assistance related to the illicit use of drugs. For FY 1991, \$14.8 million was appropriated to carry out existing grants. For FY 1992, \$14.8 million is requested. For additional information, please contact the Family and Youth Services Bureau at (202) 245-0078.

Youth Gang Drug Prevention Program. This program supports projects designed to prevent the participation of youth in gangs that engage in illicit drug-related activities; promote involvement of youth in lawful activities; prevent drug abuse by youth; educate youth about drug abuse; refer for treatment and rehabilitation youth gang members who abuse drugs; support outreach activities by law enforcement to youth gangs that commit drug crimes; inform gang members about drugs and

Directory of Federal Anti-Drug Grants

the availability of treatment and rehabilitation services for drug abuse; facilitate coordination among local school, juvenile justice, employment, social service, and drug treatment and rehabilitation agencies and programs to prevent the participation of youth in gangs that commit drug-related crimes; and for projects otherwise related to prevention of youth gang drug crime. For FY 1991 \$14.8 million was appropriated to carry out existing grants. For FY 1992, \$14.8 million is requested. For further information, please contact the Family and Youth Services Bureau at (202) 245-0078.

Information. Information on the programs summarized above, may also be obtained by writing:

Administration for Children, Youth, and Families Post Office Box 1182
Washington, D.C. 20013

Department of Housing and Urban Development

Office of Public and Indian Housing

The following grant program is included as part of the National Drug Control Strategy. An additional grant related to drug control activities is summarized on page 43.

Public Housing Drug Elimination Grant Program. The Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) awards grants for drug prevention, control, and elimination activities at public and Indian housing developments to help mobilize communities against drugs by increasing security and ridding such projects of drug dealers and drug use. These grant funds can be used to develop and implement various activities, including security, information and retrieval to counseling and treatment and other outreach efforts to reduce drug use in and around public housing. The grants are awarded on a competitive basis directly to Public Housing Authorities (PHAs) and Indian Housing Authorities (IHAs).

For FY 1991, \$149 million will be awarded for Public Housing Elimination Grants. Of this amount, 5 percent or \$7.5 million of the grants are targeted to Youth Sports, and \$1 million is for technical assistance, training, and the Drug Information and Strategy Clearinghouse. A grant announcement will be published in the *Federal Register* in May 1991. For FY 1992, a total of \$165 million is requested for Drug Elimination Grants, which will increase the number of grants to PHAs and IHAs.

Youth Sports Program. This program provides financial assistance for the creation and implementation of sports services programs for youth in public housing organizations. These grants can be made to States, local governments, local park and recreation districts and agencies, nonprofit organizations, and Public and Indian Housing Authorities. Approximately \$7.5 million is available under this program. Individual grants will be for a maximum of \$125,000 and will require a 50 percent match by the applicant for the amount received. The "Notifications of Funds Available" will be published in the *Federal Register* in May 1991.

Directory of Federal Anti-Drug Grants

Information. For further information on the Public Housing Drug Elimination Grant Program, please contact the Office for Drug-Free Neighborhoods at (202) 708-1197 or write:

Office for Drug-Free Neighborhoods Department of Housing and Urban Development Washington, D.C. 20410

Department of Justice

Office of Justice Programs, Bureau of Justice Assistance

Edward Byrne Memorial State and Local Law Enforcement Assistance Program. The Edward Byrne Memorial State and Local Law Enforcement Assistance Program provides funds to assist States and local governments in carrying out specific programs that offer a high probability of improving the functioning of the criminal justice system, and to enhance drug control efforts at the State and local levels. The Program places special emphasis on nationwide and multi-jurisdictional projects and programs which address the drug problem and advance national drug control priorities. Additionally, the National Drug Control Strategy includes the following priorities for drug control and the criminal justice at the State and local levels, which the States are encouraged to consider as they develop their statewide strategies:

- Increased emphasis by States and localities on street-level drug law enforcement.
- Development and implementation of intermediate sanctions programs for nonviolent drug offenders, including house arrest and boot camps.
- Development and implementation of programs, that hold drug users and dealers accountable, including the vigorous prosecution and increased fines for misdemeanor drug offenses.
- Expansion of programs to eradicate the domestic marijuana crop.
- Adoption of programs throughout the criminal justice system to test defendants/offenders for drugs, including arrestees, prisoners, parolees, and those out on bail.
- Comprehensive planning and designing of judicial and correctional facilities.

The Bureau of Justice Assistance (BJA) is authorized to make grants to States, for use by States and local governments, to enforce State and local laws that establish offenses similar to offenses established in the Federal Controlled Substances Act and to improve the

functioning of the criminal justice systems, with emphasis on violent crime and serious offenders. Grants may provide personnel, equipment, training, technical assistance, and information systems for the more widespread apprehension, prosecution, adjudication, detention, and rehabilitation of persons who violate such laws, and may provide assistance (other than compensation), to the victims of such crimes. This assistance may include the following programs:

- 1. Demand reduction education programs in which law enforcement officers participate.
- 2. Multijurisdictional task force programs that integrate Federal, State, and local drug law enforcement agencies and prosecutors for the purpose of enhancing interagency coordination and intelligence and facilitating multijurisdictional investigations.
- 3. Programs designed to target the domestic sources of controlled and illegal substances, such as precursor chemicals, diverted pharmaceuticals, clandestine laboratories and cannabis cultivations.
- 4. Community and neighborhood programs which assist citizens in preventing and controlling crime, including special programs which address the problems of crimes committed against the elderly and special programs for rural jurisdictions.
- 5. Disrupting illicit commerce in stolen goods and property.
- 6. Improving the investigation and prosecution of white-collar crime, organized crime, public corruption crimes and fraud against the government with priority attention to cases involving drug-related official corruption.
- 7. a. Improving the operational effectiveness of law enforcement through the use of crime analysis techniques, street sales enforcement, schoolyard violator programs and gang-related and low-income housing drug control programs.
 - b. Developing and implementing antiterrorism plans for deep draft ports, international airports and other important facilities.
- 8. Career criminal prosecution programs, including the development of model drug control legislation.

- 9. Financial investigative programs which target the identification of money laundering operations and assets obtained through illegal drug trafficking, including the development of proposed model legislation, financial investigative training and financial information sharing systems.
- 10. Improving the operational effectiveness of the court process by expanding prosecutorial, defender and judicial resources and implementing court delay reduction programs.
- 11. Programs designed to provide additional public correctional resources and improve the corrections system, including treatment in prisons and jails, intensive supervision programs and long-range corrections and sentencing strategies.
- 12. Providing prison industry projects designed to place inmates in a realistic working and training environment which will enable them to acquire marketable skills and to make financial payments for restitution to their victims, for support of their own families and for support of themselves in the institution.
- 13. Providing programs which identify and meet the treatment needs of adult and juvenile drug-dependent and alcohol-dependent offenders.
- 14. Developing and implementing programs which provide assistance to jurors and witnesses and assistance (other than compensation) to victims of crime.
- 15. a. Developing programs to improve drug control technology, such as pretrial drug testing programs, programs which provide for the identification, assessment, referral to treatment, case management and monitoring of drug-dependent offenders and enhancement of State and local forensic laboratories.
 - b. Criminal justice information systems to assist law enforcement, prosecution, courts, and corrections organizations (including automated fingerprint identification systems).
- 16. Innovative programs which demonstrate new and differentiapproaches to enforcement, prosecution, and adjudication of drug offenses and other serious crimes.
- 17. Addressing the problems of drug trafficking and the illegal manufacture of controlled substances in public housing.

- 18. Improving the criminal and juvenile justice system's response to domestic and family violence, including spouse abuse, child abuse and abuse of the elderly.
- 19. Drug control evaluation programs which State and local government may utilize to evaluate programs and projects directed at State drug control activities.
- 20. Providing alternatives to prevent detention, jail and prison for persons who pose no danger to the community.
- 21. Programs of which the primary goal is to strengthen urban enforcement and prosecution efforts targeted at street drug sales.

FORMULA GRANT PROGRAM

Funding: Funds remaining after a set-aside for the Discretionary Grant Program for any fiscal year will be distributed under the Formula Grant Program. Each State receives a base amount of .25 percent of the total formula allocation with the remaining funds allocated on the basis of each State's relative share of the total U.S. population. Approximately \$423 million is available in FY 1991. A table showing State allocations for FY 1990 through FY 1992 is contained in appendix A. For FY 1992, \$405 million is requested.

State Office: The chief executive of each participating State shall designate a State Office to administer the program and to coordinate the distribution of funds with State agencies receiving Federal funds for drug abuse education, prevention, treatment, and research activities and programs. An office or agency performing other functions within the State's executive branch may be designated as the State Office.

Administrative Funds: Up to 10 percent of the Formula Grant funds allocated to a State may be used to pay for costs incurred in administering the Formula Grant Program. BJA, however, encourages the States to keep administrative funding to no more than 5 percent, unless clearly justified in the application and approved by BJA.

Matching Requirements: At least 25 percent of the cost of a program or project funded with FY 1991 Formula Grant Funds must be paid with non-Federal funds. For FY 1991 and subsequent year appropriations, at least 50 percent of the cost of a program or project must be paid with non-Federal funds. The non-Federal share shall be in cash. Funds provided for match must be in addition to funds, which would otherwise be made available by the recipients for law enforcement. The match is to be provided on a project-by-project basis.

Passthrough: Local units of government must receive a share of the State's Formula Grant funds equal to the ratio of local criminal justice expenditures to the total criminal justice expenditures for the State.

Funding Priority: In distributing funds, the State shall give priority to those jurisdictions with the greatest need.

Period of Project Support: Projects funded under the Formula Grant Program may be funded for a maximum of four years (48 months) in the aggregate, including any projects occurring before the effective date of this Act.

Construction: Grant funds may be used for construction of penal and correctional institutions only. Acquisition of land with grant funds is prohibited.

Statewide Strategy: Each State is required to develop a statewide strategy to improve the functioning of the criminal justice system, with an emphasis on drug trafficking, violent crime, and serious offenders. The strategy shall be prepared after consultation with State and local officials, particularly those whose duty it is to enforce drug and criminal laws and direct the administration of justice.

DISCRETIONARY GRANT PROGRAM

Funding: Twenty percent of the total allocation, or \$50 million, whichever is less, is reserved for the Discretionary Grant Program. For FY 1992, \$50 million is requested.

Program Purposes: Discretionary grant funds provide Federal financial assistance to public or private agencies and private nonprofit organizations for purposes of:

- Undertaking educational and training programs for criminal justice personnel.
- Providing technical assistance to State and local units of government.
- Undertaking projects which are national or multijurisdictional in scope and which address the purpose areas authorized by the Act.
- Providing financial assistance to public agencies and private nonprofit organizations for demonstration programs which, in view of previous research or experience, are likely to be a success in more than one jurisdiction.

Eligibility: Public and private agencies and private nonprofit organizations are eligible to apply for and receive funds under this program.

Match: Grants may be made for up to 100 percent of the costs of an approved project.

Program Priorities: Program priorities for FY 1991 are designed to implement recommendations made in the National Drug Control Strategy and to respond to needs identified by State and local criminal justice practitioners. Areas of emphasis for FY 1991 include: Intermediate Sanctions and User Accountability; Gangs and Violence; Multijurisdictional Task Forces; Community-Based Policing; Drug Testing; Evaluation; Victims; and Improved Information Systems. A description of the programs and the request for proposals are published in the FY 1991 Discretionary Program Application Kit, available from the BJA Clearinghouse, 1-(800)-688-4BJA.

Evaluation Activities: The Anti-Drug Abuse Act of 1988 specifically mandates BJA's program evaluation activities. Section 501(c) requires that programs funded with Formula Grant funds contain an evaluation component that meets the guidelines developed by the National Institute of Justice (NIJ), in cooperation with BJA. The Director of BJA may waive this requirement under certain circumstances. Each State is required to provide to BJA, at the end of each fiscal year, a performance evaluation and assessment report concerning formula-funded activities and may use formula funds to pay for their evaluation activities.

Applicants for Discretionary Grant funding are required to include an evaluation component in their application and to agree to conduct required evaluations according to procedures and terms established by BJA.

In addition to these BJA-specific requirements, NIJ is designated as an active participant in the BJA evaluation program and requires the development of evaluation guidelines and the conduct of a "reasonable" number of comprehensive evaluations of selected Discretionary and Formula Grant Programs. The Director of NIJ is required to annually report to the President, the Attorney General, and the Congress on the nature and findings of the evaluation activities required in this Section. NIJ evaluations complement ongoing BJA evaluation efforts.

Each State is required to provide BJA with a summary of its grant activities and an assessment of the impact of these programs on the needs identified in its statewide drug strategy and to report to BJA the results of their evaluation activities. The BJA Director is required to submit an annual report which contains BJA evaluation results of programs and projects and State strategy implementation to the Speaker of the House of Representatives and the President pro tempore of the Senate.

Information. For further information on the Formula Grant Program, please call (202) 514-6838. For information on the Discretionary Grant Program, please call (202) 514-5947. Information on both the Formula and Discretionary Grant Programs may also be obtained by writing:

Bureau of Justice Assistance 633 Indiana Avenue N.W. Washington, D.C. 20531

Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Programs

The Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Programs (OJJDP) was created by the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act of 1974 (42 U.S.C. 5601) in response to national concern about juvenile crime. It is the primary Federal agency for addressing juvenile crime and delinquency and the problem of missing and exploited children. OJJDP's anti-narcotics and dangerous drug program focuses on youth at high risk of narcotics and dangerous drug involvement. Drug prevention and education resources for FY 1991 total \$8.1 million. Grant announcements will be published in Spring 1991 in the *Federal Register*. For FY 1992, \$7.5 million is requested.

Information. For further information, please contact OJJDP at (202) 307-5911 or write:

Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Programs
Office of Justice Programs
633 Indiana Avenue, N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20531

Department of Labor

Employment and Training Administration

Job Training Partnership Act Grant Programs. The Job Training Partnership Act (JTPA) provides job and training services for economically disadvantaged adults and youth, dislocated workers, and others who face significant employment barriers. JTPA aims to move the jobless into permanent self-sustaining employment. State and local governments have primary responsibility for the management and administration of job training programs under JTPA. Governors have approval authority over locally developed plans and are responsible for monitoring program compliance.

State Job Training Coordinating Councils are formed by the governors to provide recommendations on job training matters. Service Delivery Areas (SDAs) are designated by the governors to receive federal job training funds. SDAs are administrative districts into which the Nation is divided for JTPA purposes, typically a city or county with a population of 200,000 or more. Each SDA is required to set up a Private Industry Council (PIC) which are appointed by local elected officials to plan job training and employment programs at the SDA level. PIC members represent local businesses and provide policy guidance and have oversight responsibilities for local JTPA programs. Amendments to JTPA will be proposed for 1992 which will require individual assessment for each program participant, and specifically include drug and alcohol abuse counseling and referral as allowable services.

In estimating amounts to be utilized in drug control programs, the Department estimates the costs incurred in developing and maintaining drug-free workplace programs for State and local employees and the costs to counsel and educate all program participants on the effects of substance abuse.

In 1991, \$1,778.5 million was appropriated for the block grant program and \$682.9 million was provided for the Summer Youth Employment and Training Program (SYEP). Of these amounts, approximately \$31.9 million of the block grant and \$23.2 million of the SYEP are for drug abuse control. Under proposed amendments, these programs will be replaced in 1992 by Adult and Youth Job Training Programs. The President's Budget request for 1992 includes \$1,088 million for the Adult Program and \$1,377.6 million for the Youth program, of which \$33.1 million and \$27.3 million are for drug abuse control, respectively.

For additional information about JTPA, please contact your State JTPA liaison. A list of all JTPA liaisons is included in Appendix E.

Job Corps Programs. Title IV-B of JTPA provides disadvantaged youth ages 16 through 21 with basic education, vocational skills training, work experience, counseling, health care, and related support services in the residential setting of a Job Corps center. The program is intended to better prepare these youth to either obtain and hold gainful employment, pursue further education or training, or satisfy entrance requirements for careers in the Armed Forces. Job Corps operates through a partnership of government, labor, and the private sector. The government provides the facilities and equipment for Job Corps centers, funding for recruiting new students, center operations, and placement of students upon termination. Major corporations and nonprofit organizations manage and operate 106 centers in 44 states.

Drug resources for the Job Corps Program are divided into two components. The Substance Use and Abuse Prevention Program (SUAP) involves the administration of drug tests and educational programs which increase knowledge about drug and alcohol abuse. The Substance Intervention Program (SIP) focuses on drug treatment by assigning enrollees, whose drug test results were positive, to participate in intervention treatment activities. \$867.5 million was appropriated in 1991 for Job Corps, and the same level is requested for 1992. Of these amounts, \$9.5 million in 1991 and \$10.9 million in 1992 are for drug abuse control efforts. For further information, please contact the Employment and Training Administration's Office of Job Training Programs at (202) 535-0236.

Youth Opportunity Unlimited Program. The goal of the Department of Labor's Youth Opportunity Unlimited (YOU) demonstration program is to give local areas a chance to plan at the community level, and to provide coordinated, comprehensive services for all youth in a particular community. Local areas are required to develop primary goals for all youth in the target area — completion of high school, entry into community colleges or acquiring a career skill, placement into a careertrack job. Supporting goals will also be developed — making schools more personal and effective, increasing police protection and drug prevention activities, strengthening families and the community. Developing a community drug eradication strategy is one of several components in the demonstration. In June 1990, Labor awarded six cities three-year grants at \$2.7 million each (\$1 million in 1990 and 1991 and \$700,000 in 1992). The cities which received grants were: Atlanta; Baltimore; Columbus; Los Angeles; San Diego; and Philadelphia. The state of Mississippi received a three-year rural demonstration grant. \$25 million will be requested for YOU in 1992 under the new JTPA amendments. For additional information, please contact the Employment and Training Administration's Office of Strategic Planning and Policy Development at (202) 535-0682.

Information. Further information on these programs may also be obtained by writing:

Employment and Training Administration Department of Labor 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. Washington, D.C. 20210

ACTION

ACTION's mission is to expand the involvement of volunteers in responding to a wide range of community issues and needs, including the prevention of illicit drug abuse. ACTION's anti-drug programming is targeted on preventing the use of illegal drugs, through such strategies as education/awareness, mentoring and peer support, alternative activities and community service. ACTION's programs are designed to increase the number of volunteers and the extent of volunteer participation in illicit drug use prevention activities. The demonstration of innovative strategies to involve increasing numbers of volunteers is a significant component of ACTION grant funding. The Domestic Volunteer Service Act of 1973 (Sect. 124), as amended, authorizes the Director of Action to engage in activities that mobilize and initiate private sector efforts to increase volunteerism in preventing drug abuse, including grants, contracts, conferences, speakers bureaus, public-private partnerships, and technical assistance. ACTION programs which are included as part of the National Drug Control Strategy are summarized below. An additional ACTION grant related to drug control activities is summarized on page 45.

Drug Alliance Grants. Drug Alliance grants support projects which use nonstipended volunteers to provide positive peer activities for youth; conduct alternative drug-free activities for youth; organize parent groups; assist children of illegal drug users; serve as mentors for at-risk youth; conduct public awareness efforts, especially among youth and in low-income communities; organize illicit drug use prevention training; and provide technical assistance. Only applications from private nonprofit incorporated organizations and public agencies will be considered. Such organizations may include local coalitions dedicated to the prevention of illegal drug use, volunteer groups, religious organizations, local government agencies, fraternities, sororities, and youth serving organizations. For FY 1991, drug prevention resources total \$2.2 million. Grants no larger than \$40,000 will be awarded. Application materials were available on January 9, 1991. Applications were due by February 25, 1991. For FY 1992, \$1.5 million is requested for prevention activities.

Information. For further information on the Drug Alliance Grants, please contact ACTION at (202) 634-9757 or the ACTION State Office near you. A list of all ACTION State Offices is included in Appendix F.

ACTION has a number of other programs which support anti-drug efforts through volunteer service. These programs are summarized below.

Foster Grandparents Program. This program provides older individuals opportunities for serving their communities by providing for the emotional, mental, and physical well-being of children through close, personal, and continuing relations. Anti-drug efforts include participating in anti-drug education programs in schools and working with "Crack Babies" in hospitals. Volunteers work in correctional institutions, homes for disadvantaged, dependent, or neglected children, and other settings within the community. Foster Grandparents must be at least 60 years of age and meet specific income guidelines. For FY 1991, drug prevention resources total \$1.7 million. For FY 1992, \$1.7 million is requested for drug prevention activities.

Retired Senior Volunteer Program. Through this program, retired individuals have the opportunity to participate in their communities through volunteer service. The program's projects are planned, organized, and operated at the local level and developed under the auspices of an established organization able to generate local program and financial support. Anti-drug efforts under this program include participating in drug prevention programs in schools, interacting with children and youth through recreational activities; and involvement in programs such as "Just Say No." Volunteers also provide administrative and management support for community substance abuse efforts. Volunteers also serve other older persons on the use, misuse, and abuse of prescriptions and over-the-counter medications. Volunteers must be at least 60 years of age. There are no income or educational restrictions. For FY 1991, drug prevention resources total \$0.4 million. For FY 1992, \$0.4 million is requested for drug prevention activities.

Senior Companion Program. The Senior Companion Program services in drug abuse prevention focuses primarily on assisting older adults having drug abuse problems due mainly to the use, misuse, and abuse of prescription and over-the-counter medications. For FY 1991, drug prevention resources total \$0.5 million. For FY 1992, \$0.5 million is requested for drug prevention activities.

Volunteers in Service to America (VISTA). VISTA provides opportunities for Americans to work with locally sponsored projects designed to increase the capability of low-income people to improve the condition of their own lives. Anti-drug activities include volunteer efforts to establish and expand drug use prevention projects in low-income schools and communities; developing community service activities for youth; prevention efforts within public housing projects; and recruiting and training community volunteers and generating private sector support to sustain and expand existing drug abuse prevention projects. For FY 1991, drug prevention resources total \$4.5 million. For FY 1992, \$5.2 million is requested for drug prevention activities.

Additional Crant Programs

Department of Health and Human Services

Office for Substance Abuse Prevention (ADAMHA)

Communications Cooperative Agreement Programs. The goal of this program is to demonstrate communication-centered approaches to prevent alcohol and other drug problems among targeted populations. Awards will be made as cooperative agreements, a type of assistance award which involves participation by Federal staff in the conduct of the projects. Federal staff will also provide technical assistance. This program will support efforts that carefully develop, disseminate, and evaluate public information and education efforts, as well as efforts that develop communication tools and materials which respond to the highly specific needs of particular audiences. Approximately \$2.6 million is available in FY 1991. Applications were due by February 1, 1991, while applications for the next grant cycle are due in the Fall of 1991. For FY 1992, \$2.7 million is requested. For further information, please contact the Division of Communications Programs at (301) 443-0373.

Conference Support Grants. Financial support is available from OSAP for coordinating, exchanging, and disseminating information on drug abuse prevention through domestic conferences. Applications are invited for conferences relating to substance abuse prevention, including conferences for the purposes of information dissemination to the services community and the general public, and national strategy development for substance abuse prevention. Priority consideration will be given to applications which demonstrate the potential for knowledge dissemination, interface with health promotion concepts and practices, resource utilization and/or consensus building in the furtherance of combating substance abuse, particularly as it pertains to high risk youth. Approximately \$2 million is available for constituency-initiated conferences under this announcement in FY 1991. Awards will be limited to no more than \$50,000 for any one conference. Applications must be submitted by April 24, 1991. For FY 1992, \$2.1 million is requested. For further information, please contact the Program Planning Unit at (301) 443-6980.

National Training System. Approximately \$26 million is available through this program, primarily through contracts. The goal of the National Training System (NTS) is to increase the recognition, prevention, and treatment of alcohol- and drug-related problems through the development of training initiatives directed at groups with access to populations at risk. The major activities of the NTS are designing and

delivering training, strengthening existing training materials and developing new ones, improving access to training resources, and providing technical assistance. For further information, please contact the Division of Community Prevention and Training at (301) 443-0369.

Technical Assistance Workshops. OSAP provides on-site technical assistance for prospective grantees. Technical assistance is provided for comprehensive, community-based prevention to communities and organizations interested in developing or enhancing prevention systems. OSAP offers other types of technical assistance to its demonstration program grantees as needed, e.g., programmatic, evaluation, communication, and management-related assistance. For further information, please contact OSAP at (301) 443-0365.

Office of Human Development Services

Head Start Family Service Center Demonstration Projects. The purpose of these projects is to demonstrate how Head Start programs can more effectively address the complex and interrelated problems of substance abuse, illiteracy, and chronic unemployment and underemployment, which limit the capacity of many Head Start families to achieve self-sufficiency. A principal role for the Head Start Family Service Center Demonstration Project grantees will be to demonstrate a model for Head Start family support which can effectively collaborate with community organizations to address significant problems impacting the self-sufficiency of Head Start families. Collaboration between the Head Start program, State welfare agencies, substance abuse treatment and prevention programs, adult literacy and basic education programs, job training programs, and other programs is sought to improve Head Start's capacity to establish more effective systems for addressing the problems of substance abuse, illiteracy, and chronic unemployment/ underemployment. Approximately \$2.5 million was available in FY 1990. Thirteen projects were awarded three-year grants of up to \$225,000 per year. Additional Family Service Center Demonstrations may be funded in FY 1991. For additional information, please contact the Head Start Bureau at (202) 245-0573.

Department of Housing and Urban Development

Technical Assistance Program. Through this program, HUD provides technical assistance to public housing authorities, resident management corporations, and incorporated resident councils. The "Notifications of Funds Available" will be published in the *Federal Register* in Spring 1991. Additional funds for technical assistance and training will be available on September 1, 1991.

Information. For further information on these programs, please contact the Drug Information and Strategy Clearinghouse at (800) 245-2691 or the Office for Drug-Free Neighborhoods at (202) 708-1197 or write:

Office for Drug-Free Neighborhoods Department of Housing and Urban Development Washington, D.C. 20410

ACTION

Student Community Service Program. This program encourages students to volunteer their service to their communities. Anti-drug activities include providing substance abuse education through formal classroom presentations; providing counseling; mentoring at-risk youth living in poor neighborhoods; and providing structured educational and recreational programming, including substance abuse prevention activities for children in low-income housing projects. For FY 1991, drug prevention resources total \$54,000. Level funding is requested for FY 1992.

Information. For further information on this program, please contact ACTION at (202) 634-9757 or write:

ACTION
Program Demonstration and Development
1100 Vermont Avenue, NW
Washington, D.C. 20525

Appendices

Appendix A

Formula Drug Grants to States

FORMULA DRUG GRANTS TO STATES \$ Millions

			6.6 7.0 6.7 1.7 1.8 1.7 5.8 6.2 5.9 4.3 4.5 4.4 39.7 43.2 41.4 5.5 5.9 5.6 5.4 5.8 5.5 1.9 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.9 1.9		HHS **		EDUCATION			TOTAL		% Change		
=	STATE	FY 90	FY 91	FY 92*	FY 90	FY 91	FY 92*	FY 90	FY 91	FY 92*	FY 90	FY 91	FY 92*	90-92
	Alabama	6.6	7.0	6.7	6.0	6.2	6.0	7.7	8.8	8.8	20.3	22.0	21.5	6%
	Alaska	1.7	1.8	1.7	1.2	1.2	1.2	2.1	2.4	2.4	5.0	5.4	5.4	7%
	Arizona	5.8	6.2	5.9	6.7	6.9	6.7	5.8	6.6	6.6	18.2	19.7	19.3	6%
	Arkansas	4.3	4.5	4.4	2.4	2.4	2.2	4.5	5.1	5.1	11.1	12.1	11.7	5%
(California	39.7	43.2	41.4	60.4	65.2	66.6	45.8	52.8	52.8	145.9	161.2	160.8	10%
(Colorado	5.5	5.9	5.6	6.5	7.0	6.9	5.2	5.9	5.9	17.2	18.8	18.4	7%
(Connecticut	5.4	5.8	5.5	6.7	6.9	6.9	4.8	5.4	5.4	16.9	18.1	17.9	5%
1	Delaware	1.9	2.0	1.9	1.5	1.6	1.5	2.1	2.4	2.4	5.5	6.1	5.9	- 6%
]	District of Columbia	1.8	1.9	1.9	2.3	2.4	2.3	2.1	2.4	2.4	6.2	6.7	6.6	5%
]	Florida	17.8	19.4	18.6	22.6	23.9	23.8	17.7	20.6	20.6	58.2	63.9	63.0	8%
(Georgia	9.7	10.4	9.9	8.4	8.9	8.8	11.7	13.3	13.3	29.8	32.6	32.0	8%
1	Hawaii	2.5	2.7	2.6	2.2	2.3	2.2	2.2	2.4	2.4	6.8	7.4	7.2	5%
]	Idaho	2.4	2.5	2.4	1.0	1.1	1.0	2.2	2.5	2.5	5.5	6.1	5.9	7%
]	Illinois	16.9	17.9	17.2	22.1	24.0	24.6	19.6	22.1	22.1	58.6	64.1	63.9	9%
]	Indiana	8.6	9.2	8.8	7.2	7.3	6.7	9.3	10.3	10.3	25.0	26.8	25.8	3%
1	Iowa	4.9	5.2	5.0	3.9	4.3	4.4	4.6	5.1	5.1	13.3	14.6	14.5	9%
]	Kansas	4.4	4.7	4.5	2.8	3.0	2.9	4.0	4.5	4.5	11.2	12.2	11.9	7%
]	Kentucky	6.1	6.5	6.2	5.2	5.6	5.8	6.8	7.7	7.7	18.1	19.7	19.7	9%
	Louisiana	7.0	7.4	7.1	7.8	8.8	9.1	8.7	9.9	9.9	23.5	26.1	26.1	11%
]	Maine	2.6	2.8	2.7	1.4	1.4	1.4	2.2	2.5	2.5	6.2	6.7	6.6	6%
]	Maryland	7.3	7.9	7.5	10.4	11.4	12.0	7.3	8.3	8.3	25.0	27.5	27.8	11%
1	Massachusetts	9.0	9.6	9.2	12.7	13.0	12.6	8.7	9.9	9.9	30.5	32.5	31.7	4%
]	Michigan	13.6	14.5	13.9	19.1	20.4	20.8	16.2	18.4	18.4	48.9	53.3	53.0	8%
]	Minnesota	6.9	7.4	7.1	7.0	7.6	7.9	6.9	7.8	7.8	20.8	22.7	22.7	9%
]	Mississippi	4.6	4.9	4.7	2.3	2.4	2.3	5.7	6.6	6.6	12.6	13.8	13.5	8%
j	Missouri	8.0	8.5	8.2	8.0	8.5	8.5	8.3	9.4	9.4	24.3	26.4	26.1	7%
]	Montana	2.1	2.2	2.1	1.0	1.0	1.0	2.1	2.4	2.4	5.2	5.7	5.6	7%
3	Nebraska	3.2	3.4	3.2	2.2	2.3	2.3	2.6	3.0	3.0	8.0	8.7	8.5	6%
1	Nevada	2.4	2.7	2.6	2.1	2.2	2.1	2.1	2.4	2.4	6.7	7.3	7.1	6%
]	New Hampshire	2.5	2.7	2.6	1.0	1.0	1.0	2.2	2.4	2.4	5.6	6.1	6.0	7%
]	New Jersey	11.5	12.3	11.8	17.1	17.7	17.4	12.2	13.9	13.9	40.8	43.8	43.0	5%
]	New Mexico	3.0	3.3	3.1	2.1	2.1	2.0	2.9	3.4	3.4	8.1	8.8	8.5	6%
]	New York	25.5	27.1	25.9	44.2	46.7	46.5	30.8	35.7	35.7	100.5	109.4	108.1	8%
1	North Carolina	9.9	10.6	10.1	7.7	8.0	7.9	10.7	12.1	12.1	28.3	30.6	30.1	7%
1	North Dakota	1.9	2.0	1.9	0.8	0.9	0.8	2.1	2.4	2.4	4.8	5.3	5.2	7%

FORMULA DRUG GRANTS TO STATES

\$ Millions

	JUSTICE			HHS **			EDUCATION			TOTAL		% Change	
STATE	FY 90	FY 91	FY 92*	FY 90	FY 91	FY 92*	FY 90	FY 91	FY 92*	FY 90	FY 91	FY 92*	90-92
Ohio	15.8	16.9	16.2	18.1	19.2	19.0	18.0	20.3	20.3	51.9	56.3	55.4	7%
Oklahoma	5.4	5.7	5.5	3.9	4.1	3.9	5.5	6.1	6.1	14.8	15.9	15.5	4%
Oregon	4.8	5.1	4.9	4.8	5.2	5.1	4.3	5.0	5.0	13.9	15.3	15.0	8%
Pennsylvania	17.4	18.5	17.7	22.2	23.4	23.2	19.0	21.6	21.6	58.6	63.5	62.5	79
Rhode Island	2.3	2.5	2.4	2.4	2.5	2.3	2.1	2.4	2.4	6.9	7.4	7.1	49
South Carolina	5.7	6.1	5.9	4.6	4.9	4.8	6.3	7.2	7.2	16.7	18.3	17.9	89
South Dakota	2.0	2.1	2.0	0.9	0.9	0.9	2.1	2.4	2.4	5.0	5.4	5.3	79
Tennessee	7.7	8.2	7.9	6.7	7.1	7.2	8.5	9.6	9.6	22.8	25.0	24.7	89
Texas	24.0	25.7	24.6	27.9	31.2	32.2	31.2	35.1	35.1	83.1	92.0	91.9	119
Utah	3.3	3.5	3.4	3.4	3.7	3.7	3.7	4.1	4.1	10.4	11.4	11.2	89
Vermont	1.7	1.9	1.8	1.0	1.0	1.0	2.1	2.4	2.4	4.9	5.3	5.2	79
Virgina	9.2	9.9	9.5	10.1	10.8	11.0	9.3	10.6	10.6	28.6	31.3	31.1	99
Washington	7.3	8.0	7.6	8.4	9.0	8.9	7.2	8.2	8.2	23.0	25.2	24.7	89
West Virginia	3.6	3.7	3.6	1.7	1.8	1.6	3.4	3.8	3.8	8.7	9.3	9.0	49
Wisconsin	7.6	8.1	7.8	8.6	9.4	9.8	8.0	8.9	8.9	24.2	26.4	26.4	99
Wyoming	1.6	1.7	1.7	0.5	0.5	0.5	2.1	2.4	2.4	4.3	4.7	4.6	89
Puerto Rico	5.5	5.8	5.6	5.9	6.3	6.3	9.2	10.8	10.8	20.6	23.0	22.7	109
Virgin Islands	1.1	1.2	1.2	0.3	0.3	0.3	1.3	2.1	2.1	2.8	3.6	3.6	309
Guam	1.2	1.3	1.2	0.2	0.2	0.2	1.3	2.1	2.1	2.7	3.6	3.5	319
Other Insular Areas	1.1	1.2	1.1	0.4	0.4	0.4	0.9	1.4	1.4	2.4	3.0	2.9	249
HHS Set-aside	0.0	0.0	0.0	37.9	34.8	33.9	0.0	0.0	0.0	37.9	34.8	33.9	-119
TOTAL	395.1	423.0	405.3	485.9	512.3	512.3	435.9	497.7	497.7	1,316.9	1,433.0	1,415.3	79

^{* 1992} data are preliminary estimates based on the President's budget request.

^{**} The HHS data in this table are estimates for each State's drug abuse spending. For the HHS grant, each State has a unique percentage established for the ratio of mental health funds to substance abuse funds. Within these unique ratios, each State must spend a minimum of 35% of its substance abuse funding for drugs, but may spend up to 65% of its substance abuse funding for drugs. The drug estimates for each State equal 50% of the amount each State receives for substance abuse. The sum total of the State grants are less than the drug portion of the HHS grant since set asides for research and data collection are not included.

Appendix B

State/Territory
Contacts for DrugFree Schools and
Communities
Grant Program

State/Territory Contacts for Drug-Free Schools and Communities Grant Program

GOVERNOR'S OFFICE

STATE EDUCATION AGENCY

ALABAMA

Gail Ellerbrake Coordinator of Drug Abuse Policy Office of the Governor Alabama State House 11 South Union Street, Rm 234 Montgomery, AL 36130 (205) 242-7126 Joe Lightsey Program Specialist Drug Education Program Department of Education 50 North Ripley Street Montgomery, AL 36130 (205) 242-8083

ALASKA

Cc.inie Munro Education Specialist Drug-Free Schools Program State Department of Education Post Office Box F Juneau, AK 99811-0500 (907) 465-2824 Helen Mehrkens Education Administrator Drug-Free Schools Program Department of Education Post Office Box F Juneau, AK 99811-0500 (907) 465-2824

ARIZONA

Jack G. Moortel
Director
Office of Substance Abuse Programs
Office of the Governor
1700 West Washington, Rm 810
Phoenix, AZ 85007
(602) 542-3456

Mark LaScola Director, Comprehensive Health Unit Department of Education 1535 West Jefferson Phoenix, AZ 85007 (602) 542-4273

ARKANSAS

Ray Stevens, Assistant Director Office of Substance Abuse Prevention State Department of Human Services 400 Donaghey Plaza North Post Office Box 1437, Slot 2400 Little Rock, AR 72203 (501) 682-6656 Ottistene Smith Drug Education Prog Advisor Department of Education 4 Capitol Mall, Room 405B Little Rock, AR 72201-1071 (501) 682-5170

CALIFORNIA

Andrew Mecca
Director
Department of Alcohol and Drug Prog
111 Capitol Mall, Suite 450
Sacramento, CA 95814
(916) 445-0834

Robert Ryan Administrator Critical Health Initiatives Department of Education Post Office Box 944272 Sacramento, CA 94244-2720 (916) 322-4018

Appendix B

COLORADO

Buzzy Gibson
Project Director
Communities for a Drug-Free Colorado
Office of the Governor
136 State Capitol
Denver, CO 80203
(303) 894-2750

Mary VandeWall Program Coordinator High Risk Intervention Unit Department of Education 201 East Colfax Avenue Denver, CO 80203 (303) 866-6766

CONNECTICUT

Valerie Bates Drug-Free Schools Coordinator Justice Planning Division State Office of Policy and Management 80 Washington Street Hartford, CT 06106 (203) 566-3500 Judith Carson Assoc Education Consultant Department of Education Post Office Box 2219, Room 369 Hartford, CT 06145 (203) 566-2931

DELAWARE

Bonita Byrd-Williams
Director
Governor's Drug Abuse Coord Council
Office of the Governor
820 North French Street
Wilmington, DE 19801
(302) 577-3210

Edith P. Vincent State Supervisor Health Ed and Services Dept of Public Instruction Townsend Bldg Post Office Box 1402 Dover, DE 19903 (302) 739-4885

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

Sterling Tucker Director Office of Drug Control Policy 1111 E Street, NW, Suite 550E Washington, D.C. 20004 (202) 727-9472 Essie G. Page Special Asst to the Superintendent District of Columbia Public Schools 415 12th Street, NW Washington, D.C. 20004 (202) 724-4222

FLORIDA

Robin Hassler Policy Coordinator for Drug Policy Office of the Governor State Capitol, Room 209 Tallahassee, FL 32399-0001 (904) 922-5316 Nancy Fontaine Director Drug-Free Schools Program Department of Education, Rm 414 Tallahassee, FL 32399 (904) 488-6304

GEORGIA

Mike Vollmer
Executive Director
Governor's Commission on Drug
Awareness and Prevention
10 Park Place South, Suite 201
Atlanta, GA 30303
(404) 651-6898

Patricia Redmond
Deputy Director
Division of Mental Health, Retardation,
and Substance Abuse
878 Peachtree Street, NE, Room 319
Atlanta, GA 30309
(404) 894-4200

J. Rendel Stalvey Coordinator Health and Physical Education Department of Education 1952 Twin Towers East Atlanta, GA 30334-5040 (404) 656-2414

HAWAII

Kathleen Ka'iulani de Silva Director Office of Children and Youth Office of the Governor 426 Queen Street Honolulu, HI 96813 (808) 586-0110 Herman Aizawa Assistant Superintendent Office of Instructional Services Department of Education 1390 Miller Street Honolulu, HI96813 (808) 586-3446

Alan Kang Youth Affairs Officer 426 Queen Street Honolulu, Hawaii 96813 (808) 586-7582/7583

IDAHO

Terry Pappin Substance Abuse Specialist Division of Family and Child Services State Dept of Health and Welfare 450 West State Street Boise, ID 83720 (208) 334-6542 Patricia Ball
Drug Education Consultant
Department of Education
Len B. Jordon Building
450 West State Street
Boise, ID 83720
(208) 334-2281

Appendix B

ILLINOIS

James E. Long
Director
Department of Alcohol and Substance
Abuse
222 South College, Second Floor
Springfield, IL 62704
(217) 785-9067

James Finley
Deputy Superintendent
Department of State Police
200 Armory Building
Springfield, IL 62706
(217) 782-6132

James H. Mendenhall Manager Program Support Office Department of Education 100 North First Street Springfield, IL 62777 (217) 782-3810

INDIANA

Helen C. Dillon
Director of Prevention and Planning
Division of Addiction Services
Department of Mental Health
117 E. Washington Street
Indianapolis, IN 46204-3647
(317) 232-7816

Phyllis Lewis Education Consultant Department of Education State House, Room 229 Indianapolis, IN 46204 (317) 232-9111

IOWA

Janet Zwick
Director
Division of Substance Abuse
State Department of Public Health
321 East 12th Street, 3rd Floor
Des Moines, IA 50319
(515) 281-4417

David A. Wright
Substance Education
Consultant
Department of Education
Grimes State Office Bldg
Des Moines, IA 50319
(515) 281-3021

KANSAS

Galen Davis
Special Assistant for Drug and
Alcohol Abuse
Department of Administration
Rm 112, Landon State Office Building
900 Jackson State
Topeka, KS 66612
(913) 296-2584

Kristy Meeks-Johnson Program Coordinator Educational Asst Office Department of Education 120 East Tenth Street Topeka, KS 66612 (913) 296-6714

KENTUCKY

Michael Townsend Director Division of Substance Abuse Cabinet for Human Resources 275 E. Main Street Frankfort, KY 40621 (502) 564-2880

LOUISIANA

Richard Thompson Director Bureau of Student Services State Department of Education Post Office Box 94064 Baton Rouge, LA 70804-9064 (504) 342-3480

MAINE

Roger Richards
Federal Program Coordinator
Division of Alcohol and Drug Education
Servcies
Stevens School Complex
State House Station #57
Augusta, ME 04333-0057
(207) 289-6500

MARYLAND

Floyd O. Pond Executive Director Governor's Drug and Alcohol Abuse Committee 300 E. Joppa Road, Room 1105 Towson, MD 21204-3016 (301) 321-3521

MASSACHUSETTS

Georette Watson
Executive Director
Governor's Alliance Against Drugs
Office of the Governor
One Ashburton Place, Room 2131
Boston, MA 02108
(617) 727-0786

Dianne Caines Branch Manager Alcohol and Drug Unit Department of Education 1720 Capitol Plaza Tower Frankfort, KY 40601 (502) 564-6720

Richard Thompson Director Bureau of Student Services Department of Education Post Office Box 94064 Baton Rouge, LA 70804-9064 (504) 342-3480

Janet Pabst AIDS Prevention Specialist Drug-Free Schools Programs Department of Education 200 West Baltimore Street Baltimore, MD 21201 (301) 333-2321

Pam Chamberlain Interagency Coordinator Comprehensive Health and Human Services 1385 Hancock Street Quincy, MA 02169-5183 (617) 770-7612

Appendix B

MICHIGAN

Janet Zielaskowsky Prevention Analyst Office of Substance Abuse Office of the Governor 2150 Apollo Drive Lansing, MI 48909 (517) 335-8831

MINNESOTA

Susan Perkins Grants Administrator Office of Drug Policy State Department of Public Safety 316 Transportation Building St. Paul, MN 55155 (612) 296-1057

MISSISSIPPI

Roy Thigpen
Director of Public Safety Planning
Department of Public Safety
301 West Pearl Street
Jackson, MS 39203-3088
(601) 949-2225

MISSOURI

Duncan Kincheloe Assistant to the Governor Office of the Governor State Capitol Jefferson City, MO 65101 (814) 751-3222

MONTANA

Cathy Kendall
Poard of Crime Control
Montana Department of Justice
Scott Hart Building, Room 4-2
303 Roberts Street
Helena, MT 59620
(406) 444-2947

Wanda Jubb Health Education Specialist Comprehensive School Health Unit Department of Education Post Office Box 3000& Lansing, MI 48909 (517) 373-2589

Barbara Yates Manager Federal Drug Abuse Program Department of Education Capitol Square Building 550 Cedar Street St. Paul, MN 55101 (612) 296-8415

Paulette White Coordinator Drug-Free Schools Programs Department of Education 550 High Street, Suite 306 Post Office Box 771 Jackson, MS 39205 (601) 359-3874/3778

Tom Odneal Coordinator of Federal Programs Department of Elementary and Secondary Education Post Office Box 480 Jefferson City, MO 65102 (314) 751-3175

Spencer Sartorius Drug-Free Coordinator Office of Public Instruction Department of Education Capitol Building Helena, MT 59620 (406) 444-4434

NEBRASKA

Malcolm Heard
Director
Division of Alcoholism & Drug Abuse
Department of Public Instruction
Post Office Box 94728
West Van Dorn and Folsom Streets
Lincoln, NE 68509-4728
(402) 471-2851

Ann Masters
Administrator of Curriculum
Department of Education
Post Office Box 94987
301 Centennial Mall South
Lincoln, NE 68509-4987
(402) 471-4816

NEVADA

Kathlyn Bartosz Intervention Specialist Bureau of Alcohol and Drug Abuse Department of Human Resources 505 East King Street, Room 505 Carson City, NV 89710 (702) 687-4790 Michael Fitzgerald
Drug Education Consultant
Department of Education
400 West King Street
Capitol Complex
Carson City, NV 89710
(702) 687-3187

NEW HAMPSHIRE

Nancy Baybutt Special Assistant for Education Office of the Governor State House, Room 208 Concord, NH 03301 (603) 271-2121 Fay E. Youells Consultant Department of Education State Office Park, South 101 Pleasant Street Concord, NH 03301 (603) 271-2632

NEW JERSEY

Joanne Boyle Program Coordinator Drug and Alcohol Programs State Department of Education 225 West State Street, CN500 Trenton, NJ 08625 (609) 292-5780 Joanne Boyle Program Coordinator Drug and Alcohol Programs Department of Education 225 West State St, CN500 Trenton, NJ 08625 (609) 292-5780

NEW MEXICO

Paula Blevins
Special Assistant to the Governor
Drug-Free Schools Program
Office of the Governor
State Capitol Building
Santa Fe, NM 87503
(505) 827-3000

Danny Trujillo Coordinator Drug-Free Schools Department of Education 300 Don Gaspar Santa Fe, NM 87501-2786 (505) 827-6568

Appendix B

NEW YORK

Kathleen Coughlin
Deputy Director
Division of Substance Abuse Services
Stuyvestant Plaza
Executive Park
Albany, NY 12203
(518) 457-2963

Rebecca Gardner
Chief, Bureau of Health
and Drug Education
Department of Education
Washington Avenue
Albany, NY 12234
(518) 474-1491

NORTH CAROLINA

William Carroll
Deputy Director
Substance Abuse Services
Governor's Council on Alcohol
and Drug Abuse
State Department of Human
Resources
325 N. Salisbury Street
Raleigh, NC 27603
(919) 733-4670

Steven L. Hicks Alcohol/Drug Defense Section Dept of Public Instruction 210 North Dawson Street Raleigh, NC 27603 (919) 733-6615

NORTH DAKOTA

Karen Larson Assistant Director Division of Alcohol/Drug Abuse State Department of Human Services 1839 East Capitol Avenue Bismark, ND 58501 (701) 224-2769 David L. Lee Director Office of Chemical Health Dept of Public Instruction State Capitol, 9th Floor Bismark, ND 58505 (707) 224-2269

OHIO

Luceille Fleming
Director, Department of
Alcohol/Drug Addiction
170 North High Street, 3rd Floor
Post Office Box 586
Columbus, OH 43266-0586
(614) 466-3445

Jerry Klenke
Assistant Director
Division of Educational
Services, Dept of Education
65 South Front Street, #719
Columbus, OH 43266-0308
(614) 466-3708

OKLAHOMA

Jan Hardwick
Director of Prevention Services
Department of Mental Health and
Substance Abuse Services
P.O. Box 53277
Oklahoma City, OK 731-3277
(405) 271-8755

Howard Potts Director, Office of Federal Financial Assistance Program Department of Education 2500 North Lincoln Blvd Oklahoma City, OK 73105 (405) 521-2808

OREGON

Jeffrey N. Kushner Assistant Director Office of Alcohol and Drug Abuse Programs Department of Human Resources 1178 Chemeketa Street, NE Salem, OR 97310 (503) 378-2163 Ms. Ardis Christensen Associate Superintendent Division of Special Student Services Department of Education 700 Pringle Parkway, SE Salem, OR 97310 (503) 378-3615

PENNSYLVANIA

Bruce Feldman
Executive Director
Governor's Drug Policy Council
Office of the Governor
Finance Building, Room 310
Harrisburg, PA 17105
(717) 783-8626

Narvia Bostick Drug-Free Schools Advisor Division of Student Services Department of Education 333 Market Street Harrisburg, PA 17105 (717) 783-9294

RHODE ISLAND

A. Katheryn Power
Director
Governor's Substance Abuse Office
Executive Chamber
Office of the Governor
State House
Providence, RI 02903
(401) 277-2080

Edward T. Costa Director School Support Services Department of Education 22 Hayes Street Providence, RI 02908 (401) 277-2638

SOUTH CAROLINA

William L. Belvin
Director
Division of Program Support
Committee on Alcohol and Drug Abuse
3700 Forest Drive
Columbia, SC 29204
(803) 734-9585

W. Robert Banks Coordinator Substance Abuse Ed Unit Department of Education 1429 Senate Street Columbia, SC 29201 (803) 734-8097/8326

SOUTH DAKOTA

Gilbert Sudbeck
Prevention Coordinator
Division of Alcohol/Drug Abuse
State Department of Human Services
700 Governors Drive
Pierre, SD 57501-2291
(605) 773-3123

Richard Parker
Coordinator
Drug-Free Schools
Division of Education
Department of Education
700 Governors Drive
Pierre, SD 57501
(605) 773-4670

Appendix B

TENNESSEE

Jim Hall
Executive Assistant to the Governor
Tennessee State Planning Office
307 John Sevier State Office Bldg
500 Charlotte Avenue
Nashville, TN 37219-5082
(615) 741-4131

TEXAS

Jane Maxwell
Director
Office of Planning and Evaluation
Commission on Alcohol and Drug Abuse
1705 Guadalupe
Austin, TX 78701-1214
(512) 463-5510

UTAH

Mary Lou Bozich
Program Specialist Coordinator
Utah Substance Abuse Coordinator
Council
Room 101, State Capitol
Salt Lake City, UT 84114
(801) 538-1031

VERMONT

Peter A. Profera Director Administrative Services Vermont Agency of Human Services 103 South Main Street Waterbury, VT 05676 (802) 241-2950

VIRGINIA

Marla Coleman Principal Specialist, Youth Risk Prevention and Physical Education Post Office Box 6-Q Richmond, VA 23216 (804) 225-2838 Mike McGuire
Executive Assistant to the
Commissioner
Department of Education
Rachel Jackson Bldg, 320670 North
Nashville, TN 37243
(615) 741-1888

B. J. Gibson
Program Director
Division of Discretionary Funding and
Grants Administration
1701 North Congress Avenue
Room 5-123
Austin, TX 78702-9269
(512) 463-9501

Carol Vorhees, Specialist Substance Abuse Prevention Drug-Free Schools Program State Office of Education 250 East 500 Street, South Salt Lake City, UT 84111 (801) 538-7713

Susan Mahoney Coordinator Drug-Free Schools Program Department of Education 120 State Street Montpelier, VT 05602-2703 (802) 828-3111

Marla Coleman Supervisor, Risk Prevention and Physical Education Post Office Box 6-Q Richmond, VA 23216 (804) 225-2838

en,

WASHINGTON

Susan Roberts
Community Development Specialist
Government Assistance
Dept of Community Development
9th and Columbia Building, GH-51
Olympia, WA 98504-4151
(206) 753-2576

Deborah L. Koss-Warner Supervisor, Drug-Free Local Schools & Communities Prog Dept of Public Instruction Old Capitol Bldg, FG-11 Olympia, WA 98504 (206) 753-5595

WEST VIRGINIA

Helena Carpenter
Part 2 Drug Free Schools and
Communities Specialist
Criminal Justice and Highway
Safety Office
Community and Industrial
5790-A MacCorkle Avenue, SE
Charleston, WV 25304
(304) 348-8814

Kathy Roten
Drug-Free Schools Coordinator
Student Support Services
Department of Education
1900 Kanawha Boulevard East
Capitol Complex, B-309
Charleston, WV 25305
(304) 348-8830

WISCONSIN

Philip S. McCullough
Director
Bureau of Community Programs
Dept of Health and Social Services
One West Wilson Street
Post Office Box 7851
Madison, WI 53707
(608) 266-3719

Victor Contrucci Assistant Superintendent Department of Public Instruction 125 South Webster Street Madison, WI 53707 (608) 266-1649

WYOMING

Jean Defratis
Substance Abuse Program Manager
Division of Community Programs
Dept of Health and Social Services
451 Hathaway Building
Cheyenne, WY 82002
(307) 777-6793

Linda Stowers
Unit Director
School Improvement Program
Department of Education
Hathaway Building
Cheyenne, WY 82002
(307) 777-6808

AMERICAN SAMOA

Sili K. Sataua Program Director Drug-Free Schools Program Department of Education American Samoa Government Pago Pago, AS 96799 (684) 633-5244

Appendix B

GUAM

Lourdes T. Pangelinan Special Assistant Office of the Governor Post Office Box 2950 Department of Education Agana, Guam 96910 (671) 472-8931 Ernestina A. Cruz Administrator Office of Federal Programs Post Office Box DE Agana, Guam 96910 (671) 472-8524

NORTHERN MARIANA ISLANDS

Elizabeth D. Rechebei Commissioner of Education Public School System Lower Base Post Office Box 1370 Saipan, Northern Mariana Islands 96950 (670) 322-9311 Jackie Quitagua Public School System Lower Base P.O. Box 1370 Saipan, Northern Mariana Islands 96950 (670) 322-9311

PUERTO RICO

Carmen Morales
Director
Office of Federal Affairs
Department of Education
Post Office Box 759
Hato Rey, Puerto Rico 00919
(809) 758-4949 (ext. 6047)

REPUBLIC OF PALAU

Elizabeth K. Oseked Juvenile Justice Program and Planning Post Office Box 100 Koror, RP 96940 (680) 488-1218 Masa-Aki Emesiochl Chief, Division of Curriculum Development Post Office Box 189 Koror, RP 96940 (680) 488-2570

VIRGIN ISLANDS

Muriel Jackson Project Coordinator Department of Human Services Barbel Plaza South St. Thomas, Virgin Islands 00801 (809) 774-4393 Suzanna M. Tye State Coordinator Department of Education 44-46 Kogens Gade St. Thomas, Virgin Islands 00802 (809) 774-0100

Appendix C

Alcohol/Drug Abuse State/Territory Contacts for ADMS Block Grant Program

Alcohol Drug Abuse State/Territory Contacts for ADMS Block Grant Program

ALABAMA

James V. Laney
Director
Division of Substance Abuse Services
Department of Mental Health and
Mental Retardation
200 Interstate Park Drive
Post Office Box 3710
Montgomery, AL 36193
(205) 270-4650

ALASKA

Loren Jones
Director
Division of Alcoholism and Drug Abuse
Dept of Health and Social Services
Post Office Box H-05-F
Juneau, AK 99811-0607
(907) 586-6201

ARIZONA

Bob Lakely
Manager, Office of Substance Abuse
Department of Health Services
Office of Behaviorioral Health Services
2632 East Thomas
Phoenix, AZ 85016
(602) 255-1025 or 1030

ARKANSAS

Paul T. Behnke
Director, Office of Alcohol and Drug
Abuse Prevention
Donaghey Plaza North, Suite 400
Post Office Box 1437
Little Rock, AR 72203-1437
(501) 682-6550

CALIFORNIA

Andrew Mecca Chairman Governor's Policy Council on Drug and Alcohol Abuse 1700 K Street, 5th Floor Sacramento, CA 95814-4037 (916) 445-1943

COLORADO

Robert Aukerman Director Alcohol and Drug Abuse Division Department of Health 4210 East 11th Avenue Denver, CO 80220 (303) 331-8201

CONNECTICUT

John Higgins-Biddle
Executive Director
Alcohol and Drug Abuse Commission
999 Asylum Avenue, Third Floor
Hartford, CT 06105
(203) 566-4145

DELAWARE

Neil Meisler
Director
Division of Alcholism
Drug and Mental Health
1901 North Dupont Highway
Newcastle, DE 19720

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

Simon Holliday Chief Health Planning and Development 1660 L Street, NW Washington, D.C. 20036 (202) 637-7481

FLORIDA

Benjamin F. Williams
Deputy Assistant Secretary
Alcohol and Drug Abuse
Department of Health and
Rehabilitative Services
1317 Winewood Blvd
Tallahassee, FL 32301
(904) 488-0900

GEORGIA

Patricia Redmond
Deputy Director of Mental Helath,
Retardation and Substance Abuse
Alcohol and Drug Services Section
878 Peachtree Street, NE
Atlanta, GA 30309
(404) 894-4200

HAWAII

Elaine Wilson Division Chief Alcohol and Drug Abuse Division Department of Health Post Office Box 3378 Honolulu, HI 96801 (808) 586-3962

IDAHO

Ken Patterson Administratorr Division of Family and Children and Services Department of Health and Welfare 450 West State Street, Seventh Floor Boise, ID 83720 (208) 334-5935

ILLINOIS

James Long
Director
Department of Alcoholism and
Substance Abuse
100 West Randolph St., Suite 5-600
Chicago, IL 60601
(312) 814-3840

INDIANA

Johnie Underwood Director Division of Addiction Services Department of Mental Health 117 East Washington Street Indianapolis, IN 46204 (317) 232-7816

IOWA

Janet Zwick
Director
Division of Substance Abuse and
Health Promotion
Department of Public Health
Lucas State Office Building
Fourth Floor
Des Moines, IA 50319
(515) 281-3641

KANSAS

Andrew O'Donovan Acting Commissioner Alcohol and Drug Abuse Services 300 SW Oakley Biddle Building Topeka, KS 66606-1861 (913) 296-3925

KENTUCKY

Michael Townsend
Director
Division of Substance Abuse
Department of Mental Health and
Mental Retardation Services
275 East Main Street
Frankfort, KY 40621
(502) 564-2880

LOUISIANA

Robert A. Perkins, Ph.D. Director
Division of Alcohol and Drug Abuse
Department of Health and Hospitals
1201 Capitol Access Road
Post Office Box 3868
Baton Rouge, LA 70821-3868
(504) 342-9354

MAINE

Ronald Speckmann Acting Director Office of Substance Abuse State House Station #159 24 Stone Street, #6 Augusta, ME 04333 (207) 289-2595

MARYLAND

Rick Sampson Director State Alcohol and Drug Abuse Administration 201 West Preston Street Baltimore, MD 21201 (301) 225-6925

MASSACHUSETTS

Dennis McCarty
Director
Division of Substance Abuse Services
150 Tremont Street
Boston, MA 02111
(617) 727-8614

MICHIGAN

Karen Schrock Interim Director Office of Substance Abuse Services 2150 Apollo Drives Post Office Box 30206 Lansing, MI 48909 (517) 335-8809

MINNESOTA

Cynthia Turnure
Director
Chemical Dependency Program
Division
Department of Human Services
444 Lafayette Road
St. Paul, MN 55155-3823
(612) 296-4610

MISSISSIPPI

Anne D. Robertson
Director
Division of Alcohol and Drug Abuse
Department of Mental Health
Robert E. Lee State Building
11th Floor
Jackson, MS 39201
(601) 359-1288

MISSOURI

Sue Giles Director Division of Alcohol and Drug Abuse Department of Mental Health 1706 East Elm Street Jefferson City, MO 65109 (314) 751-4942

Appendix C

MONTANA

Robert Anderson Administrator Alcohol and Drug Abuse Division Department of Institutions 1539 Eleventh Avenue Helena, MT 59601 (406) 444-2827

NEBRASKA

Malcolm Heard, Director Division of Drug and Alcohol Abuse Department of Public Institutions Post Office Box 94728 Lincoln, NE 68509-4728 (402) 471-2851 (Ext 5583)

NEVADA

Liz Breshears Chief Bureau of Alcohol and Drug Abuse Department of Human Resources 505 East King Street Carson City, NV 89710 (702) 687-4790

NEW HAMPSHIRE

Geraldine Sylvester
Director
Office of Alcohol and Drug Abuse
Prevention
Health and Welfare Building
Hazen Drive
Concord, NH 03301
(603) 271-6104

NEW JERSEY

John W. Farrell
Deputy Commissioner
Division of Alcoholism, Drug Abuse,
and Addiction Services
Department of HealthDivision
129 East Hanover
Trenton, NJ 08625-0360
(609) 292-5760

NEW MEXICO

Miriam Brownstein
Acting Director
Behavioral Health Services Department
Division
Runnells Building, Room 3200 North
1190 St. Francis Drive
Santa Fe, NM 87503

NEW YORK

Marquerite T. Saunders
Director
Division of Alcoholism and Alcohol
Abuse
194 Washington Avenue
Albany, NY 12210
(518) 474-5417

John S. Gustafson
Deputy Director
Division of Substance Abuse Services
Executive Park South, Box 8200
Albany, NY 12203
(518) 457-7629

NORTH CAROLINA

William Carroll
Director
Alcohol and Drug Abuse Section
Divison of Mental Health and
Mental Retardation Services
325 North Salisbury Street
Raleigh, NC 27611
(919) 733-4670

NORTH DAKOTA

John Allen
Director
Div of Alcoholism and Drug Abuse
Department of Human Services
Professional Building
Bismarck, ND 58501
(701) 224-2769

OHIO

Luceille Fleming
Director
Department of Alcohol and Drug
Addiction Services
170 North High Street, 3rd Floor
Columbus, OH 43215
(614) 466-3445

OKLAHOMA

Don L. Anderson, ACSW Commissioner Department of Mental Health and Substance Abuse Services P.O. Box 53277, Capitol Station Oklahoma City, OK 73152 (405) 271-8777

OREGON

Jeffery Kushner Assistant Director Office of Alcohol and Drug Abuse Programs 1178 Chemeketa Street, NE, #102 Salem, OR 97310 (503) 378-2163

PENNSYLVANIA

Jeannine Petersonl
Deputy Secretary for Drug
and Alcohol Programs
Department of Health
Post Office Box 90
Harrisburg, PA 17108
(717) 787-9857

RHODE ISLAND

William Pimentel
Director
Division of Substance Abuse
Department of Mental Health,
Retardation, and Hospitals
Post Office Box 20363
Cranston, RI 02920
(401) 464-2091

SOUTH CAROLINA

Gilbert Sudbeck Director Comm on Alcohol and Drug Abusee 3700 Forest Drive Columbia, SC 29204 (803) 734-9520

SOUTH DAKOTA

Dianna Knox Acting Director Division of Alcohol and Drug Abuse Kneip Building 700 Governors Drive Pierre, SD 57501-2291 (605) 773-3123

TENNESSEE

Robbie Jackman
Acting Assistant Commissione
Division of Alcohol and Drug Abuse
Services
Department of Mental Health and
Mental Retardation0
706 Church Street, Fourth Floor
Nashville, TN 37243-0675
(615) 741-1921

TEXAS

Bob Dickson
Executive Director
Commission on Alcohol and Drug
Abuse
720 Brazos Street, Suite 403
Austin, TX 78710
(512) 867-8700

Appendix C

UTAH

Leon PoVey
Director, Division of Substance Abuse
Department of Social Services
120 North 200 West, Fourth Floor
Post Office Box 45500
Salt Lake City, UT 84145-0500
(801) 538-3939

VERMONT

Richard Powell II Director Office of Alcohol and Drug Abuse Programs 103 South Main Street Waterbury, VT 05676 (802) 241-2170 or 2175

VIRGINIA

Wayne Thacker
Director
Office of Substance Abuse Services
Department of Mental Health,
Mental Retardation, and Substance
Services
Post Office Box 1797
109 Governor Street
Richmond, VA 23214
04) 786-3906

WASHINGTON

Ken Stark
Director
Division of Alcoholism and Substance
Abuse
Department of Social and Health
Services
Mail Stop OB-21W
Olympia, WA 98504
(206) 753-5866

WEST VIRGINIA

Jack Clohan, Jr.
Director
Division of Alcohol and Drug Abuse
State Capitol
1800 Washington St, East, Rm 451
Charleston, WV 25303
(304) 348-2276

WISCONSIN

Larry W. Monson, ACSW Director Office of Alcohol and Other Drug Abuse One West Wilson Street Post Office Box 7851 Madison, WI 53707 (608) 266-3442

WYOMING

Jean DeFratis
Director
Alcohol and Drug Abuse Programs
Department of Health
Office of Substance Abuse
451 Hathaway Building
Cheyenne, Wyoming 82002
(307) 777-7115 (ext. 7118)

AMERICAN SAMOA

Fualaau Hanipale Assistant Director Social Services Division Alcohol and Drug Program Government of American Samoa Pago Pago, AS 96799

Dr. Lefiga Liaiga Director Public Health Services LBJ Tropical Medical Pago Pago, AS 96799

GUAM

Marilyn L. Wingfield Director Department of Mental Health and Substance Abuse Post Office Box 9400 Tamuning, Guam 96911 (671) 646-9262-69

PUERTO RICO

Isabel Suliveres de Martinez Secretury Department of Anti-Addiction Services Box 21414, Rio Piedras Station Rio Piedras, PR 00928-1414 (809) 765-3795

VIRGIN ISLANDS

Laureni D. Javois
Director
Division of Mental Health,
Alcoholism, and Drug Dependency
Services
Department of Health
Charless Harwood Memorial Hospital
Christiansted, St. Croix
U.S. Virgin Islands 00820
(809) 773-1992

Appendix D

State/Territory
Contacts for Drug
Control and System
Improvement Formula
Grant Program

State/Territory Contacts for Drug Control and System Improvement Formula Grant Program

ALABAMA

Kater Williams, Division Chief Alabama Department of Economics and Community Affairs P.O. Box 250347 Montgomery, AL 36125-0347 Contact: Douglas Miller Phone: 205/242-5891

ALASKA

Lt. Chris Stockard, Chief
The Bureau of Drug Enforcement
P.O. Box 190027
Anchorage, AK 99507
Contact: James Messick
Phone: 907/243-2298 or 8916

ARIZONA

Rex M. Halgerson, Executive Director Arizona Criminal Justice Commission 1700 N. 7th Ave., Suite 250 Phoenix, AZ 85007 Contact: Joseph R. Farmer Phone: 602/255-1928

ARKANSAS

Jerry Duran, Administrator Office of Intergovernmental Services Department of Finance and Administration 1515 Building, Suite 412 P.O. Box 3278 Little Rock, AR 72201 Contact: Gordon Burton Phone: 501/682-1074

CALIFORNIA

G. Albert Howenstein, Jr. Executive Director
Office of Criminal Justice Planning
1130 K Street, Suite 300
Sacramento, CA 95814
Contact: Judy O'Neal
Phone: 916/323-5350

COLORADO

William R. Woodward, Director Division of Criminal Justice 700 Kipling Street, 3rd Floor Denver, CO 80215 Contact: John Inmann Phone: 303/239-4442

CONNECTICUT

Susan Shimelman
Under Secretary
Office of Policy and Management
Policy Planning Division
80 Washington Street
Hartford, CT 06106
Contact: Thomas A. Siconolfi
Phone: 203/566-3500

DELAWARE

Thomas J. Quinn
Executive Director
Criminal Justice Council
Carvel State Office Building
820 North French Street
4th Floor
Wilmington, DE 19801
Contact: Jim Kane
Phone: 302/577-3434

Appendix D

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

Robert Lester, Acting Director Office of Criminal Justice Plans and Analysis 717 14th Street, N.W., 5th Floor Washington, D.C. 20005 Phone: 202/727-6537

FLORIDA

John A. Lenaerts, Chief Bureau of Public Safety Management The Rhyne Building 2740 Centerview Drive Tallahassee, FL 32399 Contact: Clayton Wilder Phone: 904/488-8016

GEORGIA

Minuard C. McGuire, Director Criminal Justice Coordinating Council Suite 200 10 Park Place South Atlanta, GA 30303 Contact: George Oetinger Phone: 404/656-1721

HAWAII

The Honorable Warren Price, III Attorney General State of Hawaii 425 Queen Street, Room 221 Honolulu, HI 96813 Contact: Lari Koga Phone: 808/586-1151

IDAHO

Richard L. Cade, Director Idaho Department of Law Enforcement 6111 Clinton Street Boise, Idaho 83704 Contact: Cheri Elms Phone: 208/327-7170

ILLINOIS

J. David Coldren
Executive Director
Illinois Criminal Justice
Information Authority
120 S. Riverside Plaza, Suite 1016
Chicago, IL 60606
Contact: Candice M. Kane
Phone: 312/793-8550

INDIANA

Catherine O'Connor
Acting Director
Indiana Criminal Justice
Institute
101 W. Ohio Street, Suite 1030
Indianapolis, IN 46204
Contact: Doug Fowler
Phone: 317/232-2561

IOWA

Mike Forrest, Coordinator Governor's Alliance on Substance Abuse Lucas State Office Building Des Moines, IA 50319 Contact: Martha Crist Phone: 515/281-4518

KANSAS

Arthur Griggs
Acting Secretary
Department of Administration
Statehouse, Room 265-E
Topeka, KS 66612-1590
Contact: Kathleen McMahon
Phone: 913/296-2584

KENTUCKY

W. Michael Troop, Secretary Justice Cabinet Bush Building 403 Wapping Street, 2nd Floor Frankfort, KY 40601 Contact: Debra McGovern Phone: 502/564-7554

LOUISIANA

Michael Ranatza
Executive Director
Louisiana Commission on
Law Enforcement
2121 Wooddale Blvd.
Baton Rouge, LA 70806
Contact: Ben Garris
Phone: 504/925-4421

MAINE

John Atwood, Commissioner Department of Public Safety State House Station 42 Augusta, ME 04333 Contact: David Giampetruzzi Phone: 207/873-4687

MARYLAND

Floyd O. Pond
Executive Director
Governor's Drug and Alcohol
Abuse Commission
300 E. Joppa Road, Suite 1105
Towson, MD 21204
Contact: Barbara Alunans
Phone: 301/321-3521

MASSACHUSETTS

Mary Lou Szulborski
Executive Director
Massachusetts Committee on
Criminal Justice
100 Cambridge St., Room 2100
Boston, MA 02202
Contact: Susan Foster
Phone: 617/727-5438

MICHIGAN

Patricia A. Woodward, Director Office of Criminal Justice P.O. Box 30026 Lansing, MI 48909 Contact: Ardith DaFoe Phone: 517/373-6982

MINNESOTA

Ms. Kate Speltz, Acting Director Office of Drug Policy
Department of Public Safety
316 Transportation Building
John Ireland Boulevard
St. Paul, MN 55155
Contact: Sue Perkins
Phone: 612/297-4749

MISSISSIPPI

Roy Thigpen, Director Division of Public Safety Planning Department of Public Safety 301 W. Pearl Street Jackson, MS 39203 Contact: Herbert Terry Phone: 601/949-2225

MISSOURI

Richard C. Rice, Director Missouri Department of Public Safety Truman State Office Building P.O Box 749 Jefferson City, MO 65102-0749 Contact: Kenheth Higgins Phone: 314/751-4905

MONTANA

Ed Hall, Administrator Montana Board of Crime Control 303 North Roberts Scott Hart Building Helena, MT 59620 Phone: 406/444-3604

NEBRASKA

Jim Joneson
Executive Director
Nebraska Commission on Law
Enforcement & Criminal
Justice
P.O. Box 94946
Lincoln, NE 68509
Contact: Nancy Steeves
Phone: 402/471-3416

Appendix D

NEVADA

Wayne R. Teglia, Director Department of Motor Vehicles and Public Safety 555 Wright Way Carson City, NV 89711-0900 Contact: George Wendell Phone: 702/687-4166

NEW HAMPSHIRE

Mark C. Thompson
Director of Administration
Office of the Attorney General
State House Annex
Concord, NH 03301-6397
Contact: Mark Briand
Phone: 603/271-1297

NEW JERSEY

Robert T. Winter, Director Department of Law and Public Safety Division of Criminal Justice 25 Market Street CN 085 Trenton, NJ 08625-0085 Contact: Ronald D. Sost Phone: 609/984-6500

NEW MEXICO

Richard C. DeBaca, Secretary Department of Public Safety P.O. Box 1628 Santa Fe, New Mexico 87504 Contact: Paula Blevins Phone: 505/827-3426

NEW YORK

John Poklemba, Director Criminal Justice New York State Division of Criminal Justice Services Executive Park Tower, Stuyvesant Plaza Albany, NY 12203-3764 Contact: Howard Schwartz Phone: 518/485-7919

NORTH CAROLINA

Bruce Marshburn
Acting Director
Governor's Crime Commission
P.O. Box 27687
Raleigh, NC 27611
Contact: Bruce Marshburn
Phone: 919/733-4000

NORTH DAKOTA

William Broer, Jr., Director Bureau of Criminal Investigation Attorney General's Office P.O. Box 1054 Bismarck, ND 58502 Contact: Linda Llewellyn Phone: 701/221-6180

ОНО

Joseph N. Gilyard, Director Governor's Office of Criminal Justice Service 400 East Town Street Suite 120 Columbus, Ohio 43215 Contact: Horst Gienapp Phone: 614/466-7782

OKLAHOMA

Ted Ritter
Executive Coordinator
District Attorneys Training
Coordination Council
2200 Classen Blvd., Suite 1800
Oklahoma City, OK 73106-5811
Contact: Susan Damron
Phone: 405/521-2349

OREGON

Catherine Webber
Administrator
Executive Department
155 Cottage Street, N.E.
Salem, OR 97310
Contact: Harry Edminster
Phone: 503/378-4123

PENNSYLVANIA

Ť.

James Thomas
Executive Director
Pennsylvania Commission on
Crime and Delinquency
P.O. Box 1167
Federal Square Station
Harrisburg, PA 17108-1167
Contact: Richard D. Reeser
Phone: 717/787-8559

PUERTO RICO

Honorable Hector Rivera-Cruz Attorney General Department of Justice Commonwealth of Puerto Rico P. O. Box 192 San Juan, Puerto Rico ,00902 Contact: Astrid Conde-Ramirez Phone: 809/725-0335

RHODE ISLAND

Mary Parella
Executive Director
Governor's Justice Commission
222 Quaker Lane, Suite 100
Warwick, RI 02893
Contact: Bill Martin
Phone: 401/277-2620

SOUTH CAROLINA

Stan M. McKinney, Director Division of Public Safety Programs 1205 Pendleton Street Columbia, SC 29201 Contact: Ernie Euler Phone: 803/734-0426

SOUTH DAKOTA

Frank D. Brost Executive Assistant Office of the Governor State Capitol Pierre, SD 57501 Contact: Don Brekke Phone: 605/773-3212

TENNESSEE

James Hall, Executive Director State Planning Office 307 John Sevier Building 500 Charlotte Avenue Nashville, TN 37243-0001 Contact: Doug Frady Phone: 615/741-1676

TEXAS

Thomas Vickers
Executive Director
Criminal Justice Division
P.O. Box 12428
Capitol Station
Austin, TX 78711
Contact: John Coffel
Phone: 512/463-1919

UTAH

D. Mark Jones
Executive Director
Commission on Criminal
and Juvenile Justice
Room 101
State Capitol Building
Salt Lake City, UT 84114
Contact: Dave Walsh
Phone: 801/538-1058

VERMONT

James Walton, Jr., Commissioner Vermont Department of Public Safety Waterbury State Complex 103 S. Main Street Waterbury, VT 05676-0850 Contact: Major Nick Ruggiero Phone: 802/244-8718

VIRGINIA

Lindsay Dorrier Jr., Director Department of Criminal Justice Services 805 East Broad Street Richmond, VA 23219 Contact: Joe Marshall Phone: 804/786-1577

Appendix D

WASHINGTON

Chuck Clarke, Director
Washington State Department
of Community Development
Ninth & Columbia Building, MS/GH-51
Olympia, WA 98504-4151
Contact: Michelle Boyd
Phone: 206/753-4978

WEST VIRGINIA

James M. Albert, Manager Criminal Justice & Hwy Safety 1204 Kanawha Blvd., East Charleston, WV 25301 Contact: Melissa McPhail Phone: 304/348-8814

WISCONSIN

Jerome Lacke
Executive Director
Wisconsin Office of Justice
Assistance
222 State Street, Second Floor
Madison, WI 53702
Contact: Nat Robinson
Phone: 608/266-7282

WYOMING

Thomas J. Pagel, Director Division of Criminal Investigation 316 West 22nd Street Cheyenne, WY 82002 Phone: 307/777-7181

AMERICAN SAMOA

Tuilefano M. Vaela'a Commissioner Department of Public Safety American Samoa Government P.O. Box 1086 Pago Pago, American Samoa 96799 Contact: Craig Keener Phone: 011/684/633-1111

GUAM

Peter P. Leon Guerrero
Director
Bureau of Planning
Governor's Office
P. O. Box 2950
Agana, Guam 96910
Contact: Miki Leon Guerrero

Phone: 011/671/472-8931 (Ext. 405)

NORTHERN MARIANA ISLANDS

Eddie C. DeLeon-Guerrero Executive Director Criminal Justice Planning Agency Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands Office of the Goyernor Saipan, MP 96950 011/670/322-9350

PUERTO RICO

Ms. Ileana Echegoyen Administrator Right to Employment Administration G.P.O. Box 4452 San Juan, PR 00936 (809) 758-0690 VIRGIN ISLANDS

Gaylord Sprauve
Drug Policy Advisor
Virgin Islands Law Enforcement
Planning Commission
116 & 164 Submarine Base
Estate Nisky #6
Southside Quarters
St. Thomas, Virgin Islands 00802
Contact: Helene Smollett
Phone: 809/774-6400

Appendix E

State Liaisons for the Job Training Partnership Act

State Liaisons for the Job Training Partnership Act

ALABAMA

Kenneth A. Truck Chief, Employment Training Alabama Department of Economic and Community Affairs Post Office Box 250347 Montgomery, AL 36105-0939 (205) 284-8800

ALASKA

Mr. Bob Brean
Director
Division of Housing Assistance
Department of Community and Regional
Affairs
949 East 36 Avenue, Suite 410
Anchorage, AK 99508
(907) 273-9479

ARIZONA

Mr. Manuel F. Mejia Assistant Director Division of Employment and Rehabilitation Services 1300 W. Washington Street Phoenix, AZ 85007 (602) 542-4910

ARKANSAS

Mr. William D. Gaddy Administrator Arkansas Employment Security Division Post Office Box 2981 Little Rock, AR 72203 (501) 682-2121

CALIFORNIA

Thomas P. Nagle Director Employment Development Department Post Office Box 826880 Sacramento, CA 94280-0001 (916) 445-9212

COLORADO

Mr. Leslie S. Franklin Director Governor's Job Training Office 1391 North Speer Blvd, Suite 400 Denver, CO 80204 (303) 866-3165

CONNECTICUT

Mr. Ronald F. Petronella Commissioner Department of Labor 200 Folly Brook Blvd Wethersfield, CT 06109 (203) 566-4384

DELAWARE

Mr. Louis A. Masci Director Division of Employment and Training University Plaza, Stockton Bldg Post Office Box 9029 Newark, DE 19714-9029 (302) 368-6810

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

Ms. Maria Borrero
Director
D.C. Department of Employment
Services
500 C Street, NW. Room 600
Washington, D.C. 20001
(202) 639-1000

FLORIDA

Mr. Frank Scruggs Secretary Florida Department of Labor and Employment Security 2590 Executive Center, Cir. East Berkeley Bldg, Suite 206 Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2152 (904) 488-4398

Appendix E

GEORGIA

Mr. Al Scott Commissioner Georgia Department of Labor 148 International Blvd, NE, Suite 600 Atlanta, GA 30303 (404) 656-3011

cc: Mr. H.G. Weisman Assistant Commissioner of Job Training Georgia Department of Labor 148 International Blvd, NE, Suite 650 Atlanta, GA 30303 (404) 656-3011

HAWAII

Mr. Mario R. Ramil Director Department of Labor and Industrial Relations 830 Punchbowl Street, Room 320 Honolulu, Hawaii 96813 (808) 548-3150

IDAHO

Mr. Dick Erdley, Acting Director JTPA Liaison Idaho Department of Employment 317 Maine Street Boise, ID 83735 (208) 334-6112

ILLINOIS

Mr. Herbert D. Dennis Manager JTPA Programs Division Department of Commerce and Community Affairs 620 East Adams, Sixth Floor Springfield, IL 62701 (217) 785-6006

INDIANA

Mr. Jack Cruse
Executive Director
Indiana Department of Employment and
Training Services
Ten North Senate Avenue, Rm 331
Indianapolis, IN 46204
(317) 232-3270

IOWA

Mr. Jeff Nall Administrator Division of Job Training Iowa Department of Economic Development 200 East Grand Avenue Des Moines, IA 50309 (515) 292-4779

KANSAŚ

Mr. Michael Jackson Secretary Kansas Department of Human Resources 401 S.W. Topeka Boulevard Topeka, Kansas 66603-3182 (913) 296-7474

KENTUCKY

Mr. Darvin Allen Commissioner Kentucky Department for Employment Services 275 East Main Street, 2-W Frankfort, KY 40621 (502) 564-5331

LOUISIANA

Ms. Phyllis Coleman Mouton Secretary of Labor Louisiana Department of Employment and Training JTPA Division - 3rd Floor Annex 1001 North 23rd Street Post Office Eox 94094 Baton Rouge, LA 70804-9094 (504) 342-7666

MAINE

Mr. Charles A. Morrison Commissioner Maine Department of Labor 20 Union Street Post Office Box 309 Augusta, ME 04330 (207) 289-3788

MARYLAND

Mr. Charles O. Middlebrooks Assistant Secretary Div of Employment and Training Dept of Economic and Employment Development 1100 North Eutaw Street, Rm 613 Baltimore, MD 21201 (301) 333-5070

MASSACHUSETTS

Mr.Nils Nordberg (for Title II) Commissioner Dept of Employment and Training Charles F. Hurley Building 19 Staniford Street Boston, MA 02114 (617) 727-6600

Ms. Suzanne Teegarden (for Title III) Director Industrial Services Program One Ashburton Place, Room 1413 Boston, MA 02108 (617) 727-8158

cc: Mr. Daniel S. Gregory Secretary of Economic Affairs One Ashburton Place, Room 2101 Boston, MA 02108 (617) 727-8380

MICHIGAN

Lowell Perry Director Michigan Department of Labor Victor Office Center 201 North Washington Square Lansing, MI 48933 (517) 373-9600

cc: Mr.James R. Vinenti Acting Director Governor's Office for Job Training 222 Hollister Building Post Office Box 30039 Lansing, MI 48909 (517) 373-6227 (609) 292-2323

MINNESOTA

Mr. Donald Mohawk
Director
State Job Training Office
Minnesota Department of Jobs and
Training
690 American Center Building
150 East Kellogg Boulevard
St. Paul, MN 55101
(612) 296-8008

MISSISSIPPI

Ms. Beneta D. Burt
Director
Department of Job Development and
Training
301 Pearl Street
Jackson, MS 39203-3089

MISSOURI

Mr. Larry Earley
Director
Division of Job Development and
Training
Department of Economic Development
221 Metro Drive
Jefferson City, MO 65109
(314) 751-7796

MONTANA

Mr. Robert V. Anderson Administrator Research, Safety, and Training Division Department of Labor and Industry Post Office Box 1728 Helena, MT 59624 (406) 444-4500

NEBRASKA

Mr. Dan Dolan Commissioner Department of Labor Post Office Box 99600 550 South 16th Street Lincoln, NE 68509 (402) 475-8451

Appendix E

NEVADA

Ms. Barbara Weinberg Executive Director State Job Training Office Capitol Complex 400 West King . Carson City, NV 89710 (702) 885-4310

NEW HAMPSHIRE

Mr. Ray O. Worden Executive Director New Hampshire Job Training Coordinating Council 64B Old Suncook Road Concord, NH 03301 (603) 228-9500

NEW JERSEY

Mr. Raymond L. Bramucci Commissioner New Jersey Department of Labor Trenton, NJ 08625 (609) 292-2323

NEW MEXICO

Mr. Patrick G. Baca Secretary Department of Labor 401 Broadway, NE Albuquerque, NM 87102 (505) 841-8409

NEW YORK

Mr. Thomas F. Hartnett Commissioner New York State Department of Labor State Office Building Campus Building 12 Albany, NY 12240 (518) 457-2741

NORTH CAROLINA

Mr. Joel C. New Director Div of Employment and Training Dept of Economic and Community Development 111 Seaboard Avenue Raleigh, NC 27604 (919) 733-6383

NORTH DAKOTA

Mr. Michael V. Deisz Executive Director Job Service North Dakota Post Office Box 1537 Bismarck, ND 58501 (701) 224-2836

OHIO

Ms. James Conrad Administrator Ohio Bureau of Employment Services 145 South Front Street Columbus, OH 43215 (614) 466-2100

OKLAHOMA

Mr. Glen Robards JTPA State Director Oklahoma Employment Security Commission 2401 North Lincoln Oklahoma City, OK 73105 (405) 557-5329

OREGON

Ms. J. D. Hoye Manager JTPA Administration 775 Summer Street, NE Salem, OR 97310 (503) 373-1995

PENNSYLVANIA

Mr. Harris Wofford Secretary Pennsylvania Department of Labor and Industry Labor and Industry Building, Room 1700 Harrisburg, PA 17120 (717) 783-8944

RHODE ISLAND

Mr. Henry Woodbridge Executive Director Workforce 2000 100 North Main Street Providence, RI 02903 (401) 277-6701

SOUTH CAROLINA

Dr. Robert F. David Executive Director South Carolina Employment Security Commission Post Office Box 995 Columbia, SC 29202 (803) 737-2617

SOUTH DAKOTA

Mr. Peter de Heuck Secretary South Dakota Department of Labor Kneip Building 700 Governors Drive Pierre, SD 57501 (605) 773-3101

TENNESSEE

Mr. James R. White Commissioner Tennessee Department of Labor 501 Union Building Nashville, TN 37219 (615) 741-2582

TEXAS

Mr. James E. Boyd
Director of Workforce Development
Division
Texas Department of Commerce
Post Office Box 12728
Capitol Station
Austin, TX 78711
(512) 320-9801

UTAH

Ms. Carol Berrey
Director
Office of Job Training for Economic
Development
6136 State Office Building
Salt Lake City, UT 84114
(801) 538-8750

VERMONT

Ms. Susan Auld Commissioner Department of Employment and Training Post Office Box 488 Montpelier, VT 05602 (802) 229-0311

VIRGINIA

Dr. James E. Price
Executive Director
Governor's Employment and Training
Department
The Commonwealth Building
4615 West Broad Street, Third Floor
Richmond, VA 23230
(804) 367-9800

WASHINGTON

Mr. Larry A. Malo
Assistant Commissioner
Training and Employment Analysis
Division
Employment Security Department
605 Woodview Drive, SE, MS KG11
Olympia, WA 98504-5311
(206) 438-4611

WEST VIRGINIA

Mr. Paul Skaff Interim Director Office of Job Training Programs Employment Security Division 5790 A MacCorkle Avenue, SE Charleston, WV 25304 (304) 348-5920

WISCONSIN

Ms. Carol Skornicka Secretary Department of Industry, Labor and Human Relations 201 East Washington Avenue Post Office Box 7946 Madison, Wisconsin 53707 (608) 266-2439

WYOMING

Ms. Beth Nelson Administrator Division of Employment Services Department of Employment Pos't Office Box 2760 Casper, WY 82601 (307) 235-3650

AMERICAN SAMOA

Mr. Don Ah Sue Director Department of Human Resources Government of American Samoa Pago Pago, American Samoa 96799 9-011-684-633-4485

GUAM

Mrs. Julie M. Perez Director Agency for Human Resources Development Post Office Box CP Agana, Guam 96910 672-646-9341/2/3

NORTHERN MARIANAS

Mr. Ben Guerrero
Chief
JTPA Programs
Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana
Islands
Office of the Executive Director
Civic Center
Saipan, Mariana Islands 96950

PUERTO RICO

Ms. Ileana Echegoyen Administrator Right to Employment Administration G.P.O. Box 4452' San Juan, Puerto Rico 00936 (809) 758-0690

REPUBLIC OF THE MARSHALL ISLANDS

Honorable Amata Kabua Honorable Antonio Eliu President Minister of Social Services Post Office Box 1138 Majuro, Republic of Marshall Islands 96960

Mr. Wilfred Kendell Aml assador of the Marshall Islands Government Washington Office 1901 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW Washington, D.C. 20036 (202) 223-4952

REPUBLIC OF PALAU

Mr. Augustine Mesebeluu Executive Director Private Industry Council/SJTCC Post Office Box 100 Koror, Republic of Palau 96940

D.C. Acting Representative Mr. Steve Kanai Palau Liaison Officer Hall of States, Suite 308 444 North Capitol Street, NW Washington, D.C. 20001 (202) 624-7793

VIRGIN ISLANDS

Ms. Carol M. Burke Assistant Commissioner Employment and Training V.I. Department of Labor 7 and 8 Quen Street, C'sted St. Croix, Virgin Islands 00820 (809) 773-1994

Appendix F

ACTION State and Program Offices

ACTION State and Program Offices

REGION I

John Torian, Regional Director ACTION Regional Office 10 Causeway Street, Room 473 Boston, MA 02222-1039 (617) 565-7001

Romero Cherry, State Director ACTION State Office Abraham Ribicoff Federal Building 450 Main Street, Room 524 Hartford, CT 06103-3002 (203) 240-3237

MAINE

Tom Endres, State Director ACTION State Office U.S. Court House 76 Pearl Street, Room 305 Portland, ME 04101-4188 (207) 780-3414

MASSACHUSETTS

Malcolm F. Coles, State Director ACTION State Office 10 Causeway Street, Room 473 Boston, MA 02222-1039 (617) 565-7018

NEW HAMPSHIRE/VERMONT

Peter Bender, State Director ACTION State Office Federal Post Office and Courthouse 55 Pleasant Street, Rm 223 Concord, NH 03301-3939 (603) 225-1450

RHODE ISLAND

ACTION State Office John O. Pastore Federal Building Two Exchange Terrace, Room 232 Providence, RI 02903-1758 (401) 528-5424

REGION II

Suzanne I. Tufts, Regional Director ACTION Regional Office 6 World Trade Center, Room 758 New York, NY 10048-0206 (212) 466-3481

Stanley Gorland, State Director ACTION State Office 402 East State Street, Room 426 Trenton, NJ 08608-1507 (401) 528-5424

METROPOLITAN NEW YORK

Ben Conte, State Director ACTION State Office 6 World Trade Center, Room 758 New York, NY 10048-0206 (212) 466-4471

UPSTATE NEW YORK

Ben Conte, State DirectorACTION State Office U. S. Courthouse and Federal Bldg 445 Broadway, Room 103 Albany, NY 12207-2923 (518) 472-3664

PUERTO RICO/VIRGIN ISLANDS

Ruben Nazario, State Director ACTION State Office Frederico DeGetau Federal Office Bldg Carlos Chardon Avenue, Suite G49 Hato Rey, PR 00917-2241 (809) 766-5314

REGION III

Margaret Matisko, Regional Director ACTION Regional Office U.S. Customs House 2nd and Chestnut Streets, Rm 108 Philadelphia, PA 19106-2912 (215) 597-9972

Betsy I. Wells, State Director ACTION State Office Federal Building 600 Federal Place, Room 372D Louisville, KY 40202-2230 (502) 582-6384

DELAWARE/MARYLAND

Jerry Yates, State Director ACTION State Office Federal Building 31 Hopkins Plaza, Rm 1125 Baltimore, MD 21201-2814 (301) 962-4443

OHIO

Paul Schrader, State Director ACTION State Office Leveque Tower 50 West Broad Street, Room 304A Columbus, OH 43215 (614) 469-7441

PENNSYLVANIA

Jorina R. Ahmed, State Director ACTION State Office U.S. Customs House 2nd and Chestnut Streets, Rm 108 Philadelphia, PA 19106-2998 (215) 597-3543

VIRGINIA/DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

Mr. Lindsay Scott, State Director ACTION State Office 400 North 8th Street, Room 1119 P.O. Box 10066 Richmond, VA 23240-1832 (804) 771-2197

WEST VIRGINIA

ACTION State Office 603 Morris Street, Second Floor Charleston, WV 25301-1409 (304) 347-5246

REGION IV

Marcus V. Bell, Regional Director ACTION Regional Office 101 Marietta St., NW, Suite 1003 Atlanta, GA 30323-2301 (404) 331-2859

Jack Timmons, State Director ACTION State Office Beacon Ridge Tower 600 Beacon Parkway West, Room 770 Birmingham, AL 35209-3120 (205) 731-1908

FLORIDA

James Brower, State Director ACTION State Office 3165 McCrory Street, Suite 115 Orlando, FL 32803-3750 (407) 648-6117

GEORGIA

David Dammann, State Director ACTION State Office 75 Piedmont Avenue, NE Suite 412 Atlanta, GA 303-2587 (404) 331-4646

MISSISSIPPI

Art Brown, State Director ACTION State Office Federal Building 100 W. Capitol Street, Rm 1005A Jackson, MS 39269-1092 (601) 965-5664

NORTH CAROLINA

Robert Winston, State Director ACTION State Office Federal Building P.O. Century Station 300 Fayetteville Street Mall Room 131 Raleigh, NC 27601-1739 (919) 856-4731

SOUTH CAROLINA

Joe J. Davis, State Director ACTION State Office Federal Building 1835 Assembly Street, Room 872 Columbia, SC 29201-2430 (803) 765-5771

TENNESSEE

Alfred E. Johnson, State Director ACTION State Office 265 Cumberland Bend Drive Nashville, TN 37228 (615) 736-6561

REGION V

Jeanne Bradner, Regional Director ACTION Regional Office 175 West Jackson Blvd, Suite 1207 Chicago, IL 60604-3964 (312) 353-5107

James Braxton, State Director ACTION State Office 175 West Jackson Blvd, Suite 1207 Chicago, IL 60604-3964 (312) 353-3622

INDIANA

Tom Haskett, State Director ACTION State Office 46 East Ohio St., Rm 457 Indianapolis, IN 46204-1922 (317) 226-6724

IOWA

Joel Weinstein, State Director ACTION State Office Federal Building 210 Walnut, Room 722 Des Moines, IA 50309-2195 (515) 284-4816

MICHIGAN

Stanley Scott, State Director ACTION State Office Federal Building 231 West Lafayette Blvd, Rm 658 Detroit, MI 48226-2799 (313) 226-7848

MINNESOTA

Robert Jackson, State Director ACTION State Office 431 South 7th Street, Room 2480 Minneapolis, MN 55415 (612) 334-4083

WISCONSIN

Mike Murphy, State Director ACTION State Office 517 East Wisconsin Ave., Rm 601 Milwaukee, WI 53202-4507 (414) 297-1118

REGION VI

Beth Anderson, Regional Director ACTION Regional Office 1100 Commerce, Rm 6B11 Dallas, TX 75242-0696 (214) 767-9494

Appendix F

ACTION State Office Federal Building 700 West Capitol Street, Room 2506 Little Rock, AR 72201-3291 (501)324-5234

KANSAS

James Burns, State Director ACTION State Office Federal Building 444 S.E. Quincy, Rm 248 Topeka, KS 66603-3501 (913) 295-2540

LOUISIANA

ACTION State Office 626 Maine Street, Suite 102 Baton Rouge, LA 70801-1910 (504) 389-0471

MISSOURI

John McDonald, State Director ACTION State Office Federal Office Building 911 Walnut, Rm 1701 Kansas City, MO 64106-2009 (816) 426-5256

NEW MEXICO

ACTION State Office First Interstate Plaza 125 Lincoln Avenue, Suite 214B Santa Fe, NM 87501 (505) 988-6577

OKLAHOMA

Zeke Rodriguez, State Director ACTION State Office 200 NW 5th, Suite 912 Oklahoma City, OK 73102-6093 (405) 231-5201

TEXAS

Jerry Thompson, State Director ACTION State Office 611 East Sixth Street, Suite 404 Austin, TX 78701-3747 (512) 482-5671

REGION VII - NOT UTILIZED

REGION VIII

Joyce Emerson, Regional Director ACTION Regional Office Executive Tower Building 1405 Curtis Street, Suite 2930 Denver, CO 80202-2349 (303) 844-2671

Ben Knopp, State Director ACTION State Office Columbia Building 1845 Sherman Street, Room 301 Denver, CO 80203-1167 (303) 866-1070

WYOMING

Patrick Gallizzi State Program Specialist ACTION State Office Federal Building 2120 Capitol Avenue, Rm 8009 Cheyenne, WY 82001-3649 (307) 772-2385

MONTANA

Joe Lovelady, State Director ACTION State Office Federal Building Drawer 10051 301 South Park, Room 192 Helena, MT 59626-0101 (406) 449-5404

NEBRASKA

Anne C. Johnson, State Director ACTION State Office Federal Building 100 Centennial Mall North, Rm 293 Lincoln, NE 68508-3896 (402) 437-5493

NORTH AND SOUTH DAKOTA

John C. Pohlman, State Director ACTION State Office Federal Building 225 South Pierce Street, Room 213 Pierre, SD 57501-2452 (605) 224-5996

UTAH

Gary O'Neil, State Director ACTION State Office U.S. Post Office and Courthouse 350 South Main Street, Rm 484 Salt Lake City, UT 84101-2198 (801) 524-5411

REGION IX

Fernando Xepeda, Regional Director ACTION Regional Office 211 Main Street, Rm 530 San Francisco, CA § .105-1914 (415) 744-3013

Jess Sixliller, State Director ACTION State Office 522 North Central, Room 205A Phoenix, AZ 85004-2190 (602) 379-4825

CALIFORNIA

ACTION State Office 211 Main Street, Rm 534 San Francisco, CA 94105-1914 (415) 744-3015 Henry Jibaja Interim State Director ACTION State Office Federal Building 11000 Wilshire Blvd., Room 14218 Los Angeles, CA 90024-3671 (213) 575-7421

HAWAII/GUAM/AMERICA SAMOA

Michael Gale, State Director ACTION State Office Federal Building 300 Ala Moana Blvd, Rm 6326 Post Office Box 50024 Honolulu, HI 96850-0001 (808) 541-2832

NEVADA

ACTION Stae Office 4600 Kietzke Lane, Suite E-141 Reno, NV 89502-5033 (702) 784-5314

REGION X

John B. Keller, Regional Director ACTION Regional Office Federal Office Building 909 First Avenue, Suite 3039 Seattle, WA 98174-1103 (206) 442-4520

Wilford Overgaard, State Director ACTION State Office 304 North 8th Street, Room 344 Boise, ID 83702 (208) 334-1707

ALASKA

John A. Miller, State Director ACTION State Office Federal Office Building 909 First Avenue, Suite 3039 Seattle, WA 98174-1103 (206) 442-1558

Appendix F

OREGON

Doug Cameron, Acting State Director ACTION State Office Federal Building 511 NW Broadway, Room 647 Portland, OR 97209-3416 (503) 326-2261

WASHINGTON

John A. Miller, State Director ACTION State Office Federal Office Building 909 First Avenue, Suite 3039 Seattle, WA 98174-1103 (206) 442-4975

To purchase your copy of **Federal Drug Grants to States**, please use the order form below.

	Superintendent of Documen	its Pi	ublications Order Form
Order Processing Cod *6964			Charge your order, it's easy!
	YES, please send me the following publication: FEDERAL DRUG GRANTS TO STATES, S/N 040-000-00551-0 at \$3.25 each		
	Please send me your free catalog	of hu	indreds of government books
The total cost of my order is \$ (International customers please add %25.) Price include regular domestic postage and handling and are good through 6/92. After this please call the Order and Information Desk at (202) 783-3238 to verify prices. Please to print:			
	(company or personal name)	Ple	ase choose method of payment:
	(address/attention)		Check (please make payable to the Superintendent of Documents)
	(street address)		GPO Deposit Account
	(city, state, ZIP) (daytime telephone including area code)		VISA or Mastercard
Mail to:	Superintendent of Documents Government Printing Office Washington, D.C. 20402-9325		(credit card and expiration date) (signature)

Thank you for your order!